## RESOLUTION No. 16-211

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DORAL, FLORIDA, AWARDING INVITATION TO BID # 2016-23 "STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS AT SUB BASIN H-8" TO MAGGOLC, INC.: AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MAGGOLC, INC., SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY BY THE CITY ATTORNEY, FOR THE PROVISION OF STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS AT SUB BASIN H-8, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$1,057,743.50, AND TO EXPEND BUDGETED FUNDS IN FURTHERANCE HEREOF; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Doral (the "City") issued Invitation to Bid #2016-23, "Stormwater Improvements as specified at Sub-Basin H-8" (the "ITB"), on August 24, 2016 for the purpose of providing labor & materials to construct the Stormwater Improvements as specified at Sub-Basin H-8 (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, as a result of the advertisement and notifications, fourteen (14) firms attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting held on September 2, 2016 and ten (10) submittals were received and opened on the September 16, 2016 deadlines, with all the firms meeting the required criteria; and

WHEREAS, Maggolc, Inc. was found to be the Lowest most Responsible and Responsive Bidder. Maggolc's bid is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the "Bid"), which is incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference; and

WHEREAS, staff has recommended the Mayor and City Council award the ITB to Maggolc's in accordance with the same or substantially similar terms of its Bid and to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and enter into an agreement with Maggolc for the construction of the Project in an amount not to exceed \$1,057,743.50, and to expend budgeted funds in furtherance hereof.

Res. No. 16-211 Page **2** of **3** 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF DORAL, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

<u>Section 1.</u> Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference.

<u>Section 2.</u> Award. The ITB is hereby award to Maggolc, Inc., the lowest, most responsive and responsible firm, in accordance with the same or substantially similar terms of its Bid. This award does not, in and of itself, confer any contractual rights on Maggolc.

<u>Section 3.</u> <u>Authorization to Procure Services.</u> The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and enter into an agreement with Maggolc, Inc., subject to approval by the City Attorney, as to form and legal sufficiency, for the provision of construction services for the Project, in an amount not to exceed \$1,057,743.50, inclusive of a ten percent (10%) contingency, and to expend budgeted funs in furtherance hereof.

<u>Section 4.</u> <u>Implementation.</u> The City Manager and the City Attorney are hereby authorized to take such further action as may be necessary to implement the purpose and provisions of this Resolution.

<u>Section 5.</u> <u>Effective Date.</u> This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Councilmember Cabrera who moved its adoption. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fraga and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Luigi Boria	Yes
Vice Mayor Christi Fraga	Yes
Councilman Pete Cabrera	Yes
Councilwoman Ana Maria Rodriguez	Yes
Councilwoman Sandra Ruiz	Yes

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12 day of October, 2016.

/ <u>LUIĞI BORIA, MAY</u>OI

ATTEST:

CONNIE DIAZ, CMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFIENCY FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF DORAL ONLY:

WEISS, SEROTA, HELFMAN, COLE & BIERMAN, P.L.

**CITY ATTORNEY** 

# **EXHIBIT "A"**



# City of Doral Invitation to Bid Stormwater Improvements:

Sub Basin H-8

ITB #2016-23



# City of Doral Invitation to Bid

Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8

ITB #2016-23

NOTICE: Pursuant to its Procurement Ordinance and this Invitation to Bid for Stormwater Improvements as specified herein (the "ITB"), the City of Doral (the "City") hereby gives notice of its intent to seek the submission of sealed bids for the provision of the services detailed in the scope of services listed below. Bids must be submitted to Edward Rojas, City Manager, City of Doral, 8401 NW 53rd Terrace Doral, Florida 33166 until 11:00 am on September 16, 2016. Bids shall be submitted in a sealed box/envelope clearly marked on the exterior "Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23".

All bids shall be publicly opened and recorded on September 16, 2016 at 11:00 am. Late submittals shall <u>not</u> be accepted or considered. A <u>mandatory pre-bid conference</u> shall be held on September 2, 2016 at 11:00 a.m. at City of Doral Government Center, Third Floor Training Room.

Bidders are to deliver **One (1) original and two (2) copies** in separate 3 ring binders of the submittal statements of qualifications and experience and other pertinent information for consideration, as indicated in this Invitation to Bid. In addition, bidders are to deliver two (2) CDs containing a complete PDF copy of all materials submitted in the bid. **No bid will be accepted without this requirement**.

The City of Doral reserves the right to accept any bid deemed to be in the best interest of the City or to waive any informality in any proposal. The City may reject any or all bids and re-advertise.

#### PROJECT OVERVIEW

By way of this ITB, the City is soliciting bids from, and desires to retain the services of, a qualified General Contractor to construct stormwater drainage improvements at Sub Basin H-8 as identified in the City's most recent Stormwater Master Plan Update. Through the process described herein, licensed and certified General Contractors interested in assisting the City with the provision of such services must prepare and submit a bid packet in accordance with the procedure and schedule of this ITB. The City will review submittals only from those contractors that submit an ITB packet which includes all the information required to be included as described herein.

The City intends to award a contract for Stormwater Improvements to the contractor that: possesses qualified man power, equipment, administrative capabilities to provide the proposed services, possesses previous experience on this type of work and provides the best offer and prices deemed to be in the greatest benefit to the City.

It is the intent of the City to award a contract for a period of two hundred and ten (210) calendar days, for completion of the project.

A copy of the complete bid package may be obtained from the City of Doral website, www.cityofdoral.com, by clicking on the Procurement Division link under City Departments. Select the "RFP/Open Bids" link.

All should questions or comments be directed to the following email: procurement@cityofdoral.com. Inquiries must reference "Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23" in the subject line. No phone calls will be accepted in reference to this ITB. Any communications regarding matters of clarification must be made in writing to the email address listed above. In the event that it become necessary to provide additional clarifying data or information that revises any part of this ITB, supplements or revisions will be made available via written addendum.

The City of Doral reserves the right to accept any bid deemed to be in the best interest of the City or to waive any informality in any bid. The City may reject any or all bids and re-advertise.

## SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Mandatory Pre-bid Conference:

11:00 am, September 2, 2016 City of Doral, Government Center 8401 NW 53 Terrace, Third Floor Training Room Doral, FL 33166 For directions, please call 305-593-6725

**Deadline for Written Questions:** 

12:00 pm Noon, September 9,2016

**Deadline for Submittal & Proposal Opening:** 

11:00 am, September 16, 2016 City of Doral, Government Center 8401 NW 53 Terrace, City Clerk's Office Doral, FL 33166 For directions, please call 305-593-6725

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **SCHEDULE OF EVENTS**

SECTION 00010 – ATTACHMENTS

Exhibit A – Insurance

Exhibit B — Change Order Form

Sub Basin H-8 Location Map

**Construction Plans** 

SECTION 00200 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

SECTION 00300 - TRENCH SAFETY

SECTION 00410 - BID FORM

SECTION 00420 - AWARD PREFERENCE FOR IDENTICAL TIE BIDS

SECTION 00432 - BID BOND

SECTION 00434 - LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS

SECTION 00450 - BIDDER QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

SECTION 00454 - NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

SECTION 00456 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

SECTION 00500 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

SECTION 00510 - NOTICE OF AWARD

SECTION 00550 - NOTICE TO PROCEED

SECTION 00600 - BONDS AND CERTIFICATES

SECTION 00620 - ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF CONFORMANCE WITH OSHA STANDARDS

SECTION 00710 – GENERAL CONDITIONS

SECTION 00810 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS

STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE

SOLICITATION RESPONSE FORM

**GENEREAL INFORMATION WORKSHEET** 

BUSINESS ENTITY AFFIDAVIT (VENDOR/BIDDER DISCLOSURE)

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) DISABILITY NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

PROPOSER'S CERTIFICATION

ITB SIGNATURE FOR SOLE PROPRIETOR OR PARTNERSHIP

ITB SIGNATURE PAGE FOR CORPORATION

#### **SECTION 00010 – ATTACHMENTS**

# EXHIBIT A INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

#### I. Commercial General Liability

A.	Limits	of Lia	bility
----	--------	--------	--------

**Bodily Injury & Property Damage Liability** 

Each Occurrence	\$1,000,000
Policy Aggregate	\$2,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury	\$1,000,000
Products & Completed Operations	\$2,000,000

#### **B.** Endorsements Required

City of Doral listed as an additional insured Contingent & Contractual Liability Premises and Operations Liability Primary Insurance Clause Endorsement Explosion, Collapse & Underground Hazard

#### II. Business Automobile Liability

#### A. Limits of Liability

Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit Any Auto/Owned Autos or Scheduled Autos Including hired and Non Owned Autos Any One Accident

\$1,000,000

#### **B.** Endorsements Required

City of Doral listed as an additional insured

#### III. Workers Compensation

Statutory- State of Florida

## **Employer's Liability**

A. Limits of Liability

\$1,000,000 for bodily injury caused by an accident, each accident

\$1,000,000 for bodily injury caused by disease, each employee

\$1,000,000 for bodily injury caused by disease, policy limit

# IV. Umbrella/Excess Liability (Excess Follow Form)

A. Limits of Liability

Each Occurrence \$3,000,000 Policy Aggregate \$3,000,000

City of Doral listed as an additional insured

# V. INSTALLATION FLOATER (If Applicable)

SBid Cost

Causes of Loss: All Risk/Special Form Coverage

Valuation: Replacement Cost

Deductible: 10,000 AOP, 5% Wind and Hail

# VI. Owner's & Contractor's Protective Liability

A. Limits of Liability

Each Occurrence \$1,000,000
Policy Aggregate \$1,000,000
City of Doral listed as named insured

The above policies shall provide the City of Doral with written notice of cancellation or material change from the insurer in accordance to policy provisions.

Companies authorized to do business in the State of Florida with the following qualifications shall issue all insurance policies required above:

The Company must be rated no less than "A-" as to management, and no less than "Class V" as to financial strength, by the latest edition of Best Insurance Guide published by A.M. best Company, or its equivalent. All policies or certificates of insurance are subject to review and verification by Risk Management.

# EXHIBIT "B" CHANGE ORDER

N/A

CHANGE ORDER NO					
TO: City of Doral					
PROJECT:					
CONTRACTOR:	DATE:				
This Change Order will authorize the fo	llowing change to the Agreement:				
The Work as set forth in the Agre on Exhibit "B" attached hereto	eement is hereby amended to include the items set forth and by this reference made a part hereof.				
expenses, overhead, and profit, and a connection with the above referenced under this Agreement. The Contractor this Change Order, and (b) the schedule	al, and complete compensation to the Contractor for all costs, any damages of every kind that the Contractor may incur in changes in the Work, and any other effect on any of the Work acknowledges and agrees that (a) the Contract Price of \$ under the Agreement will be [unchanged] [changed] by for performance of Work will be [unchanged] [changed] by this aives any claims for any additional compensation, damages or				
time extensions in connection with the expressly modified, all terms of the Agre	e above-referenced changes. Except as herein or heretofore eement shall remain in full force and effect and shall cover the work authorized hereunder. Any defined terms not defined in				
By signing below the parties indicate acc	ceptance of this Change Order as set forth herein.				
THE CITY OF DORAL a Florida municipal corporation	CONTRACTOR				
Ву:	Ву:				
Name:	Name:				
Title:	Title:				

#### **SECTION 00200 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BIDDER TO INSURE THAT THE BID REACHES THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER ON OR BEFORE THE CLOSING HOUR AND DATE STATED ON THE INVITATION TO BID FORM.

#### 1.0 Generally

- 1.1 Taxes: Bidder shall include all applicable taxes in the Bid.
- **1.2** Purpose of Bid: The City of Doral intends to secure a source of services/supply (s) at the lowest responsive and responsible price. The City reserves the right to award the Bid considered the best to serve the City's interests.
- 1.3 Questions: Any questions regarding this ITB should be directed in writing to the Procurement Division via email at: <a href="mailto:procurement@cityofdoral.com">procurement@cityofdoral.com</a>. All inquiries must have in the subject line the following: <a href="mailto:Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8">Sub-Basin H-8</a>, ITB #2016-23. Bidders requiring clarification or interpretation of the ITB must submit them via e-mail on or before 12:00 pm Noon, <a href="mailto:September">September</a>9, 2016. The person or firm submitting the request shall be responsible for its timely delivery. Written responses will be compiled and shall be issued only in addendum format and distributed to all potential Proposers listed on the official BIDDER's list as having received the bidding documents. In addition, inquiries and responses may also be posted on the City of Doral website and Demandstar. Only questions answered by written addenda shall be binding. Oral interpretations or clarifications shall be without legal effect. No plea of ignorance or delay or required need of additional information shall exempt a BIDDER from submitting their Bid on the required date and time as publicly noted.
- **1.4** Pursuant to the provisions of paragraph (2) (a) of section 287.133, Florida Statutes -"a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a Bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a Bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded to perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or contractor under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in section 287.107, for category two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list".

#### 2.0 Submission of Bids

- **2.1.** BIDDER's shall use the Bid Form(s) furnished by the City. Failure to do so may cause the Bid to be rejected. Removal of any of the Bid forms will invalidate the Bid. BIDDER shall deliver to the City, as Bid package:
  - a) This entire Bid document, with all sections executed.
  - b) A copy of all issued addenda.
  - c) One (1) Original and two (2) duplicates in three-ring binders, 2 CD Copies of the response and Bid Form completely executed and properly labeled.

- d) Bid Security, (Bid Bond) attached to the front inside cover of the Bid document.
- e) Certificates of Competencies.
- f) Certificate of Insurance and or Letter of Insurability

The entire Bid Package shall be placed in a <u>sealed</u> opaque envelope, box, or container and clearly marked with the BIDDER's name and address.

- **2.2** Bids having an erasure or corrections must be initialed by the BIDDER in ink. Bids shall be signed in ink; all quotations shall be typewritten or printed and filled in with ink.
- 2.3 Delivery: all items shall be delivered f.o.b. destination (i.e. at a specific City of Doral address), and delivery costs and charges (if any) will be included in the Bid Price. Exceptions shall be noted.
- **2.4** Mistake: if there is a discrepancy in the unit and extended prices, the unit prices(s) will prevail and the extensions adjusted to coincide. Bidders are responsible for checking their calculations. Failure to do so will be at the Bidder's risk, and errors will not release the BIDDER from their responsibility as noted herein.
- 2.5 Cost of Preparation: The City will not be responsible for any expenses incurred by Bidders for the preparation of a proposal related to this procurement, or for any negotiations related to potential award of the Contract.
- **2.6** Examination of Documents: The Proposer must thoroughly examine each section of this ITB. If there is any doubt or obscurity as to the meaning of any part of these conditions, the Proposer may request clarification by written request to the Procurement Division. Interpretations or clarification in response to such questions will be issued in the form of a written addendum, emailed to all parties recorded by the City's Procurement Division as having received the ITB documents. No person is authorized to give oral interpretations of, or make oral changes to the ITB. The issuance of a written addendum shall be the only official method whereby such an interpretation or clarification is made.
- **2.7** Public Records: Upon award recommendation or thirty (30) days after the ITB opening, whichever is earlier, any material submitted in response to this ITB will become a "Public Record" and shall be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law). Proposers must claim the applicable statutory exemptions to protect submittals, stating the reasons why exclusion from public disclosure is necessary and legal. The City reserves the right to make any final determination on the applicability of the Public Records Law.
- **2.8** Withdrawal of Bid: A Proposer may, without prejudice, withdraw, modify, or correct the proposal after it has been deposited with the City, provided the request and any subsequent modifications and/or corrections are filed with the City in writing **before the time for opening the submittals.** No oral modifications will be considered.
- 2.9 Right to Reject Any and/or All Submittal: The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all submittals or sections thereof, and/or waive any irregularities, informalities, and/or technical

deficiencies. The City shall not be required to accept the minimum specifications stated herein or provided but reserves the right to accept any submittal that, in the judgment of the City, will best serve the needs and interests of the City. The offering of this ITB does not, itself, in any way constitute a contractual agreement between the City of Doral and any Proposer. However, the contents of the offered document, as well as the proposed documents may be used for details of the actual agreement between the Proposer and the City of Doral. Furthermore, the City reserves the right to award without further discussion.

#### 3.0 Materials; Pricing

- **3.1** Brand Names: if a brand name, make, of any "or equal" manufacturer trade name, or vendor catalog is mentioned whether or not followed by the words "approved equal" it is for the purpose of establishing a grade or quality of material only. Bidder may offer equals with appropriate identification, samples, and/or specifications on such item(s). The City shall be the sole judge concerning the merits of items Bid as equals.
- **3.2** Material: material(s) delivered to the City under this bid shall remain the property of the seller until accepted to the satisfaction of the City. In the event materials supplied to City are found to be defective or do not conform to specifications, the City reserves the right to return the product (s) to the seller at the sellers' expense.
- **3.3** Pricing: prices should be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bid Form. In case of a discrepancy, the City reserves the right to make the final determination at the lowest net cost to the City.
- **3.4** Safety Standards: the BIDDER warrants that the product(s) supplied to the City conforms in all respects to the standards set forth in the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and its amendments. Bids must be accompanied by a materials data safety sheet (M.S.D.S.) when applicable.
- **3.5** Payments: payment will be made after commodities/services have been received/installed, accepted, and properly invoiced as indicated in the contract and/or purchase order. Invoices must bear the purchase order number.
- **3.6** Samples: samples of items, when required, must be furnished by the BIDDER free of charge to the City. Each individual sample must be labeled with the BIDDER's name and manufacturer's brand name and delivered by them within ten (10) calendar days of the Bid opening unless schedule indicates a different time. If samples are requested subsequent to the Bid opening, they should be delivered within ten (10) calendar days of the request. The City will not be responsible for returning samples.
- 3.7 Specifications: All construction and materials furnished by the successful BIDDER shall conform to the Standard and Specifications of the City of Doral, Miami-Dade County Public Works Department Standards and Specifications Parts 1, 2 & 3, The Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets and Highways, The Florida Department of Transportation Roadway and Traffic Design Standards, the Florida Department of Transportation Standards and Specifications, Florida Building Code and Chapter 8 Miami-Dade County Code. BIDDER shall also

perform all work in a safe manner, specifically, the rules and regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) shall be strictly observed.

#### 4.0 Insurance

- **4.1** Liability, Insurance, Licenses & Permits: where BIDDER's are required to enter onto City of Doral property to deliver materials or to perform work or services as a result of a Bid award, the BIDDER will assume the full duty, obligation, and expense of obtaining all necessary licenses, permits, inspections, and insurance required. The BIDDER shall be liable for any damages or loss to the City occasioned by negligence of the BIDDER (or their agent) or any person the BIDDER has designated in the completion of their contract as a result of the Bid. Contractor shall be required to furnish a certified copy of all licenses, certificates of competency or other licensor requirements necessary to practice their profession as required by Florida State Statute, Florida Building Code, Miami-Dade County, or City of Doral Code. Contractors shall include current Miami-Dade County Certificates of Competency. These documents shall be furnished to the City along with the Bid response. Failure to furnish these documents or to have required licensor will be grounds for rejecting the Bid and forfeiture of the Bid Bond.
- **4.2** BIDDER shall furnish to the Finance Director, City of Doral, 8401 NW 53rd Terrace Doral, Florida 33166, certificate(s) of insurance which indicate that insurance coverage has been obtained from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Florida or otherwise secured in a manner satisfactory to the City, for those coverage types and amounts listed in Exhibit A Insurance Requirements. At the time of Bid submission the BIDDER must submit certificates of insurance.

#### 5.0 Warranties; Disclaimer

- **5.1** BIDDER warrants that the prices, terms, and conditions quoted in the Bid will be firm for a period of 120 days from the date of the Bid opening unless otherwise stated in the Bid Form. Incomplete, unresponsive, irresponsible, vague, or ambiguous responses to the invitations to Bid will be cause for rejection, as determined by the City.
- **5.2** Warranty/Guaranty: successful BIDDER shall take all necessary steps and complete all forms for Warranty / Guarantee coverage under this Contract. BIDDER warrants by signature on the Bid Form that prices quoted here are in conformity with the latest Federal Price Guidelines.
- **5.3** Copyrights and/or Patent Rights: BIDDER warrants that there has been no violation of copyrights or patent rights in manufacturing, producing or selling of goods shipped or ordered, as a result of this Bid. The bidder agrees to indemnify City from any and all liability, loss, or expense occasioned by any such violation.
- **5.4** Guaranties: no guarantee or warranty is given or implied by the City as to the total amount that may or may not be purchased from any resulting Contract or Award. These quantities are for bidding purposes only and will be used for tabulation and presentation of the Bid. The City reserves the right to reasonably increase or decrease quantities as required. The prices offered herein and the percentage rate of discount applies to other representative items not listed in this Bid.

#### 6.0 Evaluation & Award of Bid

- **6.1** Award of Bids: the City of Doral reserves the right to accept or reject any and / or all bids or parts of bids, to waive any informality, irregularities, or technicalities, to re-advertise for bids, or take any other actions that may be deemed to be in the best interests of the City. The City also reserves the right to award the Contract on a split order basis, group by group, or item by item, or such combination as will best serve the interests of the City, unless otherwise stated. The City also reserves the right to waive minor variations to the specifications (interpretation of such to be made by the applicable department personnel). Final determination and award of Bid(s) shall be made by the City Council. In addition, each bidder agrees to waive any claim it has or may have against the CITY, the Successful Bidder, and the respective employees, arising out of or in connection with the administration, evaluation, or recommendation of any bid.
- **6.2** Discrepancies: in case of discrepancies, computed dimensions shall govern over scaled dimensions; supplemental specifications shall govern over standard specifications; and special specifications shall govern over drawings, supplemental and standard specifications.
- **6.3** Evaluation of Bids: the City, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to inspect any / all BIDDER's facilities to determine their capability of meeting the requirements for the Contract. Also, price, responsibility, and responsiveness of the BIDDER, the financial position, experience, staffing, equipment, materials, references, and past history of service to the City and / or with other units of state, and / or local governments in Florida, or comparable private entities, will be taken into consideration in the Award of the Contract.
- **6.4** Identical (tie bids): shall be awarded by the City in compliance with Florida State statutes providing for a drug free workplace, that is, in the event of an identical tie Bid, a preference shall be given to a business having a drug free workplace under Florida Statute Section 287.087, as amended. Failure to provide proof of compliance when requested shall be cause for rejection of the Bid as determined by the City.
- **6.5** Preference to Local Businesses: No local preference for this ITB.

#### 7.0 Bond Requirements

- **7.1** Bonding Requirements: The BIDDER, in submitting this Bid, must include a 5% Bid Bond for the amount of the base Bid. Such bond shall be from a Surety Company in the amount of 5% of the total amount of the base Bid. A company, cashier or personal check shall not be deemed a valid Bid Security.
- **7.2** Performance and Payment Bond: The City of Doral shall require the successful BIDDER to furnish a Performance Bond and Payment bond, each, in the amount of 100% of the total Bid Price, with the City of Doral as the Obligee, as security for the faithful performance of the Contract and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection herewith. The bonds shall be with a surety company authorized to do business in the State of Florida.
- 7.3 Bid Guaranty: The successful BIDDER shall execute the Contract (Agreement) and provide the required Performance Bond, Payment Bond, and Certificates of Insurance within ten (10) calendar

days of notification of the award by the City.

**7.4** Failure to Provide Bon(s): The BIDDER who has the Contract awarded to them and who fails to execute the Contract, furnish the Performance and Payment Bonds, and/or Insurance Certificates within the specified time shall forfeit the Bid Security that accompanied their Bid, and the Bid Security shall be retained as liquidated damages by the City, and it is agreed that this sum is a fair estimate of the amount of damages the City will sustain in case the BIDDER fails to enter into the Contract and furnish the Bonds as herein before provided. Bid Security deposited in the form of a cashier's check drawn on a local bank in good standing shall be subject to the same requirements as a Bid Bond.

#### 8.0 Contractual Matters

- **8.1** Contract Time and Contract Time Extensions: The time of completion of the work to be performed under this contract is the essence of the contract. Delays and extensions of time may be allowed only in accordance with the provisions stated in the appropriate section of the general conditions. It is the intent of the City to award a contract for a period of **two hundred and ten (210) calendar days for final completion of the project.** After acceptance of substantial completion, the Contractor will have 30 calendar days for final completion and acceptance of project. A Work Order will be issued for each project section advertised on the ITB.
- **8.2** Non-conformance to Contract: the City of Doral may withhold acceptance of, or reject items which are found upon examination, not to meet the specification requirements. Upon written notification of rejection, items shall be repaired to the City's satisfaction within (5) calendar days by the contractor at their own expense and redelivered at their expense. Rejected goods left longer than thirty (30) calendar days will be regarded as abandoned and the City shall have the right to dispose of them as its own property. Rejection for non-conformance or failure to meet delivery schedules may result in the Contractor being found in default.
- **8.3** Default Provision: in case of default by the BIDDER or CONTRACTOR, the City of Doral may procure the articles or services from other sources and hold the BIDDER or CONTRACTOR responsible for any excess costs occasioned or incurred thereby.
- **8.4** Disputes: if any dispute concerning a question of fact arises under the Contract, other than termination for default or convenience, the BIDDER and the CITY department responsible for the administration of the Contract shall make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute. If the dispute cannot be resolved by agreement, then the department with the advice of the CITY Attorney shall resolve the dispute and send a written copy of its decision to the CONTRACTOR, which shall be binding on both parties.

#### 9.0 Miscellaneous

**9.1** Governmental Restrictions: in the event any governmental restrictions may be imposed which would necessitate alteration of the material quality, workmanship, or performance of the items offered on this Bid prior to their delivery, it shall be the responsibility of the successful BIDDER to notify the City at once, indicating in their letter the specific regulation which required an

alteration. The City of Doral reserves the right to accept any such alteration, including any price adjustments occasioned thereby, or to cancel at no further expense to the City.

- **9.2** Assignment: the BIDDER shall not transfer or assign the performance required by this Bid without prior written consent of the City Manager. Any award issued pursuant to the Invitation to Bid and monies which may be due hereunder are not assignable except with prior written approval of the City Manager. Further, in the event that the majority ownership or control of the BIDDER changes hands subsequent to the award of this contract, BIDDER shall promptly notify CITY in writing of such change in ownership or control at least thirty (30) days prior to such change and CITY shall have the right to terminate the contract upon sixty (60) days written notice, at CITY's sole discretion.
- **9.3** Hold Harmless: all BIDDERS shall hold the City, its officials and employees harmless and covenant not to sue the City, its officials and employees in reference to their decisions to reject, award, or not award a Bid, as applicable.
- **9.4** Cancellation: failure on the part of the BIDDER to comply with the conditions, specifications, requirements, and terms as determined by the City, shall be just cause for cancellation of the Award.
- 9.5 Indemnification: In consideration of the separate sum of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) and other valuable consideration, the CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the CITY, its elected officers, agents, volunteers, and employees, from or on account of any injuries or damages, received or sustained by any person or persons during or on account of any operations connected with the construction of this Project, or by or in consequence of any negligence by or on account of any act or omission of the said CONTRACTOR or his Subcontractor, agents, servants or employees. The CONTRACTOR will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY, it's elected officers, and their agents, volunteers, or employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim damage, loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting wherefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused by a party indemnified hereunder. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that Sec. 725.06 (2), F.S. is applicable to this Work, then in lieu of the above provisions of this section 6.18 the parties agree that CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, their officers and employees, to the fullest extent authorized by Sec. 725.06 (2) F.S., which statutory provisions shall be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- **9.6** Secondary/Other Vendors: the City reserves the right in the event the primary bidder cannot provide an item(s) or service(s) in a timely manner as requested, to seek other sources without violating the Contract.
- **9.7** Cone of Silence. Notwithstanding any other provision in the specifications, the provisions of Section 2-11.1 Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance, as set forth in subsection (t) "Cone of Silence," of the Miami-Dade County Code are applicable to this transaction.

The Cone of Silence shall be imposed on this ITB upon its advertisement. The Cone of Silence prohibits the following activities:

- Any communication regarding this ITB between a potential vendor, service provider,
   Respondent, lobbyist or consultant and the City's professional staff;
- b) Any communication regarding this ITB between the Mayor, Council members and any member of the Mayor and Council's professional staff;
- c) Any communication regarding this ITB between potential vendor, service provider, Respondent, lobbyist or consultant and any member of a selection committee;
- d) Any communication regarding this ITB between the Mayor, Council members and any member of the selection committee therefore;
- e) Any communication regarding this ITB between any member of the City's professional staff and any member of the selection committee; and
- f) Any communication regarding this ITB between a potential vendor, service provider, Respondent, lobbyist or consultant and the Mayor or Council

Pursuant to Section 2-11.1(t)(1)(a)(ii), the Cone of Silence shall terminate at the time the Manager makes his/her written recommendation to the City Council. However, if the City Council refers the Manager's recommendation back to the Manager or staff for further review, the Cone of Silence shall be re-imposed until such time as the Manager makes a subsequent written recommendation.

The Cone of Silence shall not apply to:

- a) oral communications at pre-bid conferences;
- b) oral presentations before selection of evaluation committees:
- public presentations made to the City Council during any duly noticed public meeting;
- d) written communications regarding a particular RFP, RFQ, or bid between a potential vendor, service provider, Respondent, bidder, lobbyist or consultant and the City's Purchasing Agent or City employee designated responsible for administering the procurement process of such RFP, RFQ, or bid, provided the communication is limited strictly to matters of process or procedure already contained in the corresponding solicitation document;
- e) communications with the City Attorney and his or her staff;
- f) duly noticed site visits to determine the competency of bidders/Respondents regarding a particular bid/proposal during the time period between the opening of bids and the time the City Manager makes his or her written recommendation;
- g) any emergency procurement of goods or services pursuant to City Code;
- h) responses to the City's request for clarification or additional information pursuant to section 1.10 of this ITB;
- contract negotiations during any duly noticed public meeting;
- j) communications to enable City staff to seek and obtain industry comment or perform

market research, provided all communications related thereto between a potential vendor, service provider, Respondent, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and any member of the City's professional staff including, but not limited to, the City Manager and his or her staff are in writing or are made at a duly noticed public meeting.

Violation of the Cone of Silence by a particular bidder or Respondent shall render the ITB award or bid award to said bidder or Respondent voidable by the City Council and/or City Manager. Please contact the City Attorney for any questions regarding Cone of Silence compliance.

#### 9.8 Compliance with Orders and Laws

Successful Proposers shall comply with all local, state, and federal directives, ordinances, rules, orders, and laws as applicable to this ITB and subsequent contracting including, but not limited to:

Executive Order 11246 (which prohibits discrimination against any employee, applicant, or client because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, or age with regard to, but not limited to, employment practices, rate of pay or other compensation methods, and training.)

Occupational, Safety and Health Act (OSHA)

The State of Florida Statutes Section 287.133(3)(A) on Public Entity Crimes

**Environment Protection Agency (EPA)** 

**Uniform Commercial Code (Florida Statutes, Chapter 672)** 

American with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended

National Institute of Occupational Safety Hazards (NIOSH)

National Forest Products Association (NFPA)

State of Florida Department of Transportation- Rule 14-90, Florida Admin. Code

**U.S. Department of Transportation** 

City of Doral, City Ordinance No. 2004-03

**Cone of Silence, Miami-Dade County Code of Ordinances** 

The State of Florida Statutes Sections 218.73 and 218.74 on Prompt Payment

Bidder hereby recognizes and certifies that no elected official, board member, or employee of the City shall have a financial interest directly or indirectly in this transaction or any compensation to be paid under or through this transaction, and further, that no City employee, nor any elected or appointed officer, including, but not limited to, City Advisory Board members, of the City, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed officer of the City, may be a partner, officer, director or proprietor of Proposer or Proposer, and further, that no such City employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Vendor or Proposer. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any exception to these above described restrictions must be expressly provided by applicable law or ordinance and be confirmed in writing by City. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this transaction, if any Proposer violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the City, the provisions of Miami-Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to City, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla. Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting

any future bids or statements for goods or services to City. Bidder must complete and execute the Business Entity Affidavit form. The term "Bidder," as used in this section specifically includes any person or entity making and submitting a statement to the City for the provision of goods and/or services to City.

Lack of knowledge by the Bidder will in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility. Non-compliance with all local, state, and federal directives, orders, and laws may be considered grounds for termination of contract(s).

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 00300**

#### TRENCH SAFETY FORM

This form must be completed and signed by the Bidder.

Method of Compliance

Failure to complete this form may result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

Bidder acknowledges that the Florida Trench Safety Act, Section 553.60 et seq, Fla. Stat. which became effective October 1, 1990, shall be in effect during the period of construction of the Project. The Bidder by signing and submitting the Bid is, in writing, assuring that it will perform any trench excavation in accordance with applicable trench safety standards. The Bidder further identifies the following separate item of cost of compliance with the applicable trench safety standards as well as the method of compliance:

Method of Compliance	Cost
Trench Box	15 LF X \$ 30. = \$450.00
	Total: \$ 450.
Bidder acknowledges that this cost is include Bid. Failure to complete the above may result	d in the applicable items of the Bid and in the Total Base t in the bid being declared non-responsive.
precautions, programs of costs, of the nareasonableness of cost, sequences of procede but not limited to, compliance with any and a as the "Trench Safety Act". Bidder is, and the	neans, methods, techniques or technique adequacy, ures of any safety precaution, program or cost, including all requirements of Section 553.60 et. seq., Fla. Stat. cited CITY and ENGINEER are not, responsible to determine, if to the Project, including but not limited to, the "Trench
Witness Signature	Bidder's Signature
OLGA LEON Printed Name	Mario Gonzalez Printed Name
09/16/16 Date	President
	09/16/16 Date

## SECTION 00410 - BID FORM ITB #2016-23

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO:
City of Doral
8401 NW 53rd Terrace
Doral, Florida 33166

- The undersigned BIDDER proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an
  agreement with The City of Doral in the form included in the Contract Documents to
  perform and furnish all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the
  Contract Price and within the Contract Time indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the
  other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 2. BIDDER accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and Instructions to BIDDER'S, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid Security. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 90 days after the day of Bid opening. BIDDER agrees to sign and submit the Agreement with the Bonds and other documents required by the Bidding Requirements within ten days after the date of City's Notice of Award.
- 3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that:
  - (a) BIDDER has examined copies of all the Bidding Documents and of the following Addenda (receipt of all which is hereby acknowledged.)

Addendum No	Dated: <u>09/12/16</u>
Addendum No	Dated:
Addendum No	Dated:
Addendum No	Dated:

- (b) BIDDER has familiarized themselves with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, site, locality, and all local conditions and Law and Regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of the Work.
- (c) BIDDER has studied carefully all reports and drawings of subsurface conditions and drawings of physical conditions.
- (d) BIDDER has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies (in addition to or to supplement those referred to in (c) above) which pertain to the subsurface or physical conditions at the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports or similar

Subject: FW: Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23

From: Procurement (Procurement@cityofdoral.com)

estimating@lanzo.org; maggolc@yahoo.com; maggolc3@yahoo.com; aluna@american-pipeline.com;

raul@floridaengineering.net; afigueroa@rockpowerpaving.com; bid@secontrs.biz;

To: estimating@jvaengineering.com; rarguello@acostatractors.com; cwpipeline@hotmail.com; roberto@roadway-

construction.com; jolivares@zahlene.com; helkabbaj@zahlene.com; dpaulus@teamgfa.com; est@gcworksfl.com;

estimating@williamspaving.com; \_

Cc: Jorge.Gomez@cityofdoral.com; Carlos.Arroyo@cityofdoral.com; John.Alvarez@cityofdoral.com;

Connie.Diaz@cityofdoral.com; Jenny.Laffita@cityofdoral.com; Karina.LaRosa@cityofdoral.com;

Date: Monday, September 12, 2016 3:03 PM

Please see answers & attachments

Please see below questions in regards to the above mentioned project.

1. Per Plan Sheet G1.03, "Summary of Quantities" Table. The project contains #15 Grate Inlet Type P - "A" 3'-6", however in the bid form there are none listed. Please indicate in what item we are to include them, or please revise the bid form.

See Addendum No. 1 - Revised Bid Form

2. On Plan Sheet D1.01, the "Pavement Restoration" detail shows Geotextile Fabric to be installed around the Trench Backfill. Is this required?

Yes. Geotextile fabric mentioned is required along bottom and sides of trench, and should be overlapped at top of trench as per standard details.

3. Is there a Geotechnical Report available for this project? See attached geotechnical report.

4. Is there an Engineer's estimate for the project?

\$1.2M

Thank you very much,

about blank

10

Mario Garder 9/12/16

# Maggola INC.

#### Sub Basin H-8

Item		Unit	Qty.	Unit Price	Cost
1	Mobilization/Demobilization (includes implementation of stormwater pollution prevention plan & dust control, lighting for work at night if required)	LS	1	50,000.	50,000,00
2	Maintenance of Traffic (includes installation of steel plates to cover trenches, if required)	LS	1	8,000,00	8,000,00
3	Remove Existing Exfiltration Trench (includes excavation and disposal of all material)	1241	LF	5.00	6.2050
4	Remove Existing Inlets and Manholes (includes excavation and disposal of all material)	16	EA	500.00	8,000,00
5	Furnish and Install Exfiltration Trench - 24" Perforated HDPE Pipe (4ft Wide Trench)(includes removal of existing asphalt, excavation, backfill and compaction of all sub-grade material, limerock base, compaction of limerock base, and disposal of any excess material)	4321	LF	124.00	535,804.°
6	Furnish and Install 18" Solid-Wall HDPE Pipe (includes existing asphalt removal, excavation, backfill and compaction of all sub-grade material, limerock base, compaction of limerock base, and disposal of any excess material)	775	LF	60.00	46,500,a
7	Furnish and Install Grate Inlet Type P-A 3'-6" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	15	EA	3,200.00	48,000.00
8	Furnish and Install Manhole Type P-A 3'-6" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	8	EA	3,500,00	28,000.00
9	Furnish and Install Manhole Type P-A 4'-0" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	20	EA	4,200.00	84,000.00
10	Furnish and Install Manhole Type J-A 5'-0" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	5	EA	5,000.00	25,000.00
11	Core Drill, Tie and Seal to Existing Structure	16	EA	500.00	8.000,00
12	Superpave Asphalt Concrete (Traffic C) (Includes tack material for Ilmerock base)	590	TON	150,00	88.500,00
13	Pavement Milling (1" Average Depth)	7050	SY	1.00	7.050.00
14	Furnish and Install Performance Turf (Sod)	110	SY	5.00	550,00
15	Furnish and Install Reflective Pavement Marker (Bi-Directional White/Red)	74	EA	5.00	370.00
16	Furnish and Install Reflective Pavement Marker (Blue)	16	EA	5.00	80.00
17	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	90	LF	1.50	135.00
20	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 12" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	290	LF	2.50	725,00
	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 24" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	220	LF	5.00	1,100.00
	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard Yellow Solid 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	1000	LF	1.00	1,000,00
	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard Yellow Skip 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	2216	LF	1.00	2,216.00
22	Furnsih and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Arrow	5	EA	120.00	600.00
23	Furnish and Install Pollution Retardant Baffles/Skimmer	47	EA	250,00/	1.750,00

BID TOTAL 961, 585.00

- information or data are or will be required by BIDDER for such purposes.
- (e) BIDDER has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- (f) BIDDER has given the City written notice of all conflicts, errors, discrepancies that it has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by the City is acceptable to BIDDER.
- (g) This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other BIDDER to submit a false or sham Bid; BIDDER has not solicited or induced any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other BIDDER or over the City.
- 4. BIDDER understands and agrees that this is a unit rate contract. The prices submitted on the bid form are to furnish and deliver all of the Work complete in place. The quantities provided on the form are for the purpose of Bid Evaluation and should be considered estimates only. Contractor's unit prices will not be adjusted to reflect any deviation from the provided quantities. As such the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, supervision, safety measures, and services necessary to provide the stated units of work for the Bid Price of:

Sub Basin H-8

Item	Description	Unit	Qty.	Unit Price	Cost
1	Mobilization/Demobilization (includes implementation of stormwater pollution prevention plan & dust control, lighting for work at night if required)	LS	1		
2	Maintenance of Traffic (includes installation of steel plates to cover trenches, if required)	LS	1		
3	Remove Existing Exfiltration Trench (includes excavation and disposal of all material)	1241	LF	O	a a
4	Remove Existing Inlets and Manholes (includes excavation and disposal of all material)	16	EA	VOI	
5	Furnish and Install Exfiltration Trench - 24" Perforated HDPE Pipe (4ft Wide Trench)(includes removal of existing asphalt, excavation, backfill and compaction of all subgrade material, limerock base, compaction of limerock base, and disposal of any excess material)	4321	LF		
6	Furnish and Install 18" Solid-Wall HDPE Pipe (includes existing asphalt removal, excavation, backfill and compaction of all sub-grade material, limerock base, compaction of limerock base, and disposal of any excess material)	775	LF		u.

				G	17
7	Furnish and Install Manhole Type P-A 3'-6" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	8	EA	10	
8	Furnish and Install Manhole Type P-A 4'-0" (includes excavation, backfill material around structure and compaction)	20	EA		
9	Core Drill, Tie and Seal to Existing Structure	16	EA		
10	Superpave Asphalt Concrete (Traffic C) (Includes tack material for limerock base)	590	TON		-
11	Pavement Milling (1" Average Depth)	7050	SY		
12	Furnish and Install Performance Turf (Sod)	110	SY		
13	Furnish and Install Reflective Pavement Marker (Bi- Directional White/Red)	74	EA		
14	Furnish and Install Reflective Pavement Marker (Blue)	16	EA		
15	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	90	LF		
16	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 12" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	290	LF		
17	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Solid 24" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	220	LF		
18	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard Yellow Solid 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	1000	LF		
19	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard Yellow Skip 6" Traffic Stripe (includes cost temporary striping)	2216	LF		
20	Furnish and Install Thermoplastic Standard White Arrow	5	EA		
21	Furnish and Install Pollution Retardant Baffles/Skimmer	47	EA		

	1 + 1	0	
BID TOTAL	VOI		

#### Work to be included for all items:

Furnishing all labor, equipment, materials and any and all costs for the term of the warranty or as deemed necessary by the City, necessary to complete the work per the specifications and as required shall be included in the above bid.

#### **NOTES TO BIDDERS:**

- 1. Contractor shall fill the entire bid form; no spaces are to be left blank.
- 2. The City reserves the right to utilize any combination of the base bid, add alternates as they so desire to achieve the proper balance between the required improvements, desired improvements, and the City's available project budget.
- 3. The City reserves the right to request per unit/each pricing of materials listed on the bid form for clarification or to purchase additional materials.
- 4. Contract Time will commence on the date the Agreement is executed and continue

# consecutively for a period of two hundred and ten (210) calendar days.

	BASE BID: \$ 961,585.00  Nine Hundred Sixty one thousands, Five Hundred  Eighty Five
5.	BIDDER agrees that the work will be completed as scheduled from the date stipulated in the work orders executed under the terms of this contract.
6.	Communications concerning this Bid shall be addressed to:
	BIDDER: Maggala Iva
	Address: 11020 5055 St. Mani Fl 33165
	Telephone: 7-86-291-2949
	Facsimile Number: 786-472-8831
	Attention: Mario Gouzalez
7.	The terms used in this Bid which are defined in the General Conditions of the Contract included as part of the Contract documents have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions.
SUE	BMITTED THIS 16 DAY OF September, 2016

If BIDDER is:

# **AN INDIVIDUAL**

N/A	AN INDIVIDUAL	
Ву:	(Individual's Name)	(SEAL)
Doing business as:		
Business address: _		<u>_</u>
-		
Phone No :	Faccimile No :	

N/A

## **A PARTNERSHIP**

Ву:		
•	(Firm's Name)	
	(General Partner)	<del></del>
Business address:		æ
Phone No.:	Facsimile No.:	

# **A CORPORATION**

Ву:	Maggolc Ive. (Corporation Name)	
by.	(Corporation Name)	
	Florida	
	(State of Incorporation)	
By:	Mario Gowzalez (Name of Person Authorized to Sign)	
	(Name of Person Authorized to Sign)	
	President	
	(Title)	
Attest:	(Corporate Seal)  — Mario (President)	Gonzalez
Busines	s address: 11020 SW 55 SA.	
	Miani, Fl 33165	
Phone N	10: 786-291-2949 Facsimile No: 7-86-472	2-8831

#### A JOINT VENTURE

NIA	
	(Name)
	(Address)
	(Name)
	(Address)

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.)

# **CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY**

(IF CORPORATION)

# **CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY**

(IF PARTNERSHIP)

N/A	(IF PARTNERSHIP)	
STATE OF	)	
	) SS:	
COUNTY OF	)	
I HEREBY CERTIFY that a	meeting of the Partners of the	
a Corporation existing u	nder the laws of the State of	
held on	, 20, the following re	solution was duly passed and adopted:
"RESOLVED, that,	as	of the Partnership, be and is
hereby authorized to ex	ecute the Bid dated,	, 20, to the City of
Doral and this Partnersh	ip and that their execution thereof, a	attested by the,
shall be the official act a	nd deed of this Partnership".	
I further certify that said	resolution is now in full force and ef	fect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I	have hereunto set my hand this	, day of
Secretary:		
(SEAL)		

## **CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY**

(IF JOINT VENTURE)

$\mathcal{O}_{\mathcal{I}}$	A		
STATE OF	)		
	) SS:		
COUNTY OF	)		
	under the laws of the State of 20, the followi		
	, as		
hereby authorized to	execute the Bid dated,	, 20,	to the City of
Doral official act and o	leed of this Joint Venture".		
I further certify that sa	aid resolution is now in full force a	nd effect.	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF	, I have hereunto set my hand this	s, day of	, 20
Secretary:			
(SEAL)			

**END OF SECTION** 

#### SECTION 00420 - AWARD PREFERENCE FOR IDENTICAL TIE BIDS

Whenever two or more Bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the City or by any political subdivision for the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a Bid received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. Established procedures for processing tie Bids will be followed if none of the tied vendors have a drug-free workplace program. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:

- Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- 2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the City's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- 3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under Bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1).
- 4) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under Bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction.
- 5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program, if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
- 6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

As the person authorized to	sign the	statemer	nt, I certify that	this firm com	plies fully with	the above
requirements.	1					

BIDDERS SIGNATURE:

#### SECTION 00432 - BID BOND

STA	TE OF	Flori	da	)								
				)	SS:							
COU	NTY OF	Mia	ami Dade	)								
			BY THESE PRE					nc. d firmly bo				
a	munici	pal	corporation	_		State			in	the	sum	of
		•	ive Percent of			State	OI.	HOHQA		uie		lars
(\$ ***	*****	***5%	*****	**** ), la	wful m	onev of t	he Uni	ted States.	for th	e navm		
sum	and tru	ly to	be made, we lly, firmly by t	bind out	rselves,							
			OF THIS OBI dated, <u>Se</u>				r: <u>Sto</u>					

WHEREAS, it was a condition precedent to the submission of said Bid that a or Bid Bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid be submitted with said Bid as a guarantee that the BIDDER would, if awarded the Contract, enter into a written Contract with the City for the performance of said Contract, within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after written notice having been given of the Award of the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the conditions of this obligation are such that if the Principal within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after written notice of such acceptance, enters into a written Contract with the City of Doral and furnishes the Performance and Payment Bonds, satisfactory to the City, each in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price, and provides all required Certificates of Insurance, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise the sum herein stated shall be due and payable to the City of Doral and the Surety herein agrees to pay said sum immediately, upon demand of the City, in good and lawful money of the United States of America, as liquidated damages for failure thereof of said Principal.

seals this16th day of Sept	ember	s have executed this instrument under their several, 2016, the name and the corporate seal of hese presents being duly signed by its undersigned
IN PRESENCE OF:		Maggolc, Inc.
(Individual or Partnership Principal)		(Business Name) (SEAL)
		11020 SW 55th Street (Business Address)
		Miami, FL 33165 (City/State/Zip)
ATTEST:		(Business Phone)
See Power of Attorney Attached		Berkley Insurance Company (Corporate Surety)*
*	Ву:	Michael A. Bonet, Attorney-In-Fact
*Impress Corporate Seal		

#### **IMPORTANT**

Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State of Florida.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: Berkley Insurance Company By: Carmen E. Pillot, Witness Michael A. Bonet, Attorney-In-Fact (Printed Name) (Title) **ACKNOWLEDGMENT** State of Florida County of Miami Dade On this the 16th day of September 20 16 before me, the undersigned Notary Public of the State of Florida, personally appeared Mario Gonzalez & Michel A. Bonet and (Name(s) of individual(s) who appeared before notary) Whose name(s) is/are Subscribed to the within instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they executed it. WITNESS in my hand and official seal. NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA Notary Public State of Florida **NOTARY PUBLIC:** Carmen E Pillot My Commission FF 926437 **SEAL OF OFFICE:** 

☐ Personally known to me, or ☐ Personally identification:		
N/A		
(Type of Identification Produced)		
☐ Did take an oath, or		
☑ Did NOT take an oath,		
OPTIONAL INFORMATION:		
Type of Document	Number of Pages:	_
Number of Signatures Notarized:		

(Seal)

# POWER OF ATTORNEY BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY WILMINGTON, DELAWARE

NOTICE: The warning found elsewhere in this Power of Attorney affects the validity thereof. Please review carefully.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY (the "Company"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Greenwich, CT, has made, constituted and appointed, and does by these presents make, constitute and appoint: Roy V. Fabry or Michael A. Bonet of Kahn-Carlin & Co., Inc. of Miami, FL its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety only as delineated below and to execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver any and all bonds and undertakings, with the exception of Financial Guaranty Insurance, providing that no single obligation shall exceed Fifty Million and 00/100 U.S. Dollars (U.S.\$50,000,000.00), to the same extent as if such bonds had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company at its principal office in their own proper persons.

This Power of Attorney shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof. This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to the following resolutions which were duly and validly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 25, 2010:

**RESOLVED**, that, with respect to the Surety business written by Berkley Surety Group, the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, President or any Vice President of the Company, in conjunction with the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary are hereby authorized to execute powers of attorney authorizing and qualifying the attorney-in-fact named therein to execute bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations on behalf of the Company, and to affix the corporate seal of the Company to powers of attorney executed pursuant hereto; and said officers may remove any such attorney-in-fact and revoke any power of attorney previously granted; and further

**RESOLVED**, that such power of attorney limits the acts of those named therein to the bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent therein stated; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney-in-fact named; and further

**RESOLVED**, that the signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any power of attorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or other suretyship obligation of the Company; and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manually affixed. The Company may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the facsimile signature of any person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that they may have ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued.

IN WITNESS corporate sea	S WHEREOF, the Company has caused these present the company has caused these present here. I have a subject to the company has caused these present the caused the company has caused these present the caused th	ents to be signed and attested by its appropriate officers and its _, 2013.
(Seal)	Attest:  By  Ira S. Lederman  Senior Vice President & Secretary	Berkley Insurance Company  By July M. Hafter  Senior Vice President
WARNING:	THIS POWER INVALID IF NOT PRINTED ON	BLUE "BERKLEY" SECURITY PAPER.
COL	TE OF CONNECTICUT ) ) ss: UNTY OF FAIRFIELD )	- T/,
cincy M. Han	ance Company.	Notary Public, State of Connecticut  MY COMMISSION FOR THE IC.
	CERTIF	CATE (/

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true, correct and complete copy of the original Power of Attorney; that said Power of Attorney has not been revoked or rescinded and that the authority of the Attorney-in-Fact set forth therein, who executed the bond or undertaking to which this Power of

Andrew M. Tuma

Attorney is attached, is in full force and effect as of this date.

Given under my hand and seal of the Company, this

#### **SECTION 00434 - LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS**

BIDDER shall list all Proposed Subcontractors to be used on this project if they are awarded the contract.

CLASSIFICATION	SUBCONTRACTOR NAME, ADDRESS OF WORK AND LICENSE #
Striping	Miami Striping Ivc. Lic. 10 1550007
Milling	C & R Milling and Paving I North Krone Abe #100 Homestead Fl 3303

If, prior to Notice of the Award, the City or the Contractor has reasonable objection to and refuses to accept any Contractor, Supplier, person or organization listed, the BIDDER may, prior to Notice of Award, submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in their bid price.

## **SECTION 00450 - BIDDER QUALIFICATION STATEMENT**

The BIDDER's response to this questionnaire will be utilized as part of the City's overall Bid Evaluation and Contractor selection.

The following minimum experience is required for this project:

- Successful completion, verifiable with references, of at least three roadway and drainage construction projects of at least two hundred and fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000) each in construction costs performed in Miami-Dade County in the last five years.
- All these projects must have been performed for local government, County and/or state agency.
- Must have the capability to work on at least two sites simultaneously.

Failure to meet these minimum guidelines will be considered an unresponsive submittal and the documents will not be considered.

List projects experience consistent with the requirements stated below (DO NOT RESOND AS "SEF

ATTACHED". YOU MUST FILL TH	EINFORMATION). Sub. Basin 10 (Sw 88 Ave) flaving
1. Project Name/Location	& Brainage This venents Village of Palmetto Bay
<b>Project Description</b>	Frainage Tupovements, Roadway
	Restoration, Milling and Resurfacing
	Regrade swale, sodding
Owner Name	Village of Balmetto Bay
Contact Person	Carrice Hatterson / Danny Casals
Contact Tele./Email	305-969-5011/deasals Epalmettobay-fligor
Yearly Budget/Cost	\$ 922,633.25   \$838,778.75
Dates of Contract	5/5/15 /11/18/15
	(Continued on following page)

		Beacon Preject Area Improvements
2.	Project Name/Location	phase II - City of Miani
	Project Description	Frainage Thyprovenents, New Concrete
		Curbot Gutters and Briveways, Roadway
		Restoration, Milling & Resurfacing.
	Owner Name	City of Miani
	Contact Person	Robert Feston
	Contact Tele./Email	786-263-2133/rfenton@mianigov.com
	Yearly Budget/Cost	\$818, 978.96   \$818,978.95
	Dates of Contract	02/01/2015/05/12/2015
		Brainage Thyprovement
3.	Project Name/Location	Project - Multiple Sites
	Project Description	Frainage, Thyprovenent Roadway
		Restoration, Dew Frdewalks, Cents
		and Ramps, Milling & Resurtacing,
	Owner Name	Miami Dade - County
	Contact Person	Mercedez Barreras
	Contact Tele./Email	786-222-9912/barrememidade.gor
	Yearly Budget/Cost	\$ 407,853,44 / \$382,388,57
	Dates of Contract	04/06/2015 / 09/03/2015

## **SECTION 00454 – NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT**

STAT	EOF Florida,
COUN	SS: NTY OF Mani-Dodg
_/_	Lario Gonzalez being first duly sworn deposes and says that:  He/She/They is/are the Owner President
(1)	He/She/They is/are the Owner / President
	(Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of Maggolc Tuc. the BIDDER that has submitted the attached Bid;
(2)	He/She/They is/are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Bid;
(3)	Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid;
(4)	Neither the said BIDDER nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other BIDDER, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Work for which the attached Bid has been submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with any BIDDER, firm, or person to fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Bid or of any other BIDDER, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed Work;

(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the BIDDER or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:	By:	(left)
OLga Leon (Printed Name)		President

#### **SECTION 00456 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES**

Pursuant to the provisions of paragraph (2) (a) of Section 287.133, Florida State Statutes - "A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a Bid on a Contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a Bid on a Contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public Work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded to perform Work as a Contractor, supplier, Subcontractor, or Contractor under a Contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount Category Two of Sec. 287.017, FS for thirty six months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list".

#### **CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

The award of any contract hereunder is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida State Statutes. BIDDER's must disclose with their Bids, the name of any officer, director, partner, associate or agent who is also an officer or employee of the City of Doral or its' agencies.

## SWORN STATEMENT PERSUANT TO SECTION 287.133(3)(a) FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1. This sworn statement is submitted to for for	City of Doral
by Mario Gonzalez fo	Maggolc Ivc.
whose business address is 11020 5 w 5	Fand (if applicable) its Federa
Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is $20$	<u>- 3345 → → 5</u> (if the entity has no FEIN, include
the Social Security Number of the individual sig	ning this sworn statement:

- 2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any Bid or Contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state of the United State and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trail court of record relating to charges brought by indictment of information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
  - 1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
  - 2. Any entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executors, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prime facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during a preceding 36 month shall be considered and affiliate.
- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding Contract and which Bids or applies to Bid on Contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "persons" includes those officers, directors,

executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of any entity.

6. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Indicate which statement applies.)
Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. (Attach a copy of the final order.)
I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY, CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.  By:    Mario Gavzaler   President   President

Personally known to me, or		
☐ Personally identification:		
(Type of Identification Produced)		
Did take an oath, or		
☐ Did NOT take an oath,		
	THE PARTY OF THE P	DANIEL SANCHEZ Commission # GG 892

(Notary Signature)

(Printed, typed, or stamped commission name of notary public)

#### **SECTION 00500 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT**

This Contract (the "Contract") is dated as of the day of and between the City of Doral (hereinafter called the "CITY") and (hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR") located at:		by 
CITY and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, follows:	agree	as
ARTICLE 1 – WORK		
1.1 Project/Work: CONTRACTOR shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Documents. The Work is generally described as the following: The Project consists of <b>Stock Improvements at: Sub-Basins H-8</b> , all in accordance with the construction drawings.		
ARTICLE 2 – CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER		
<b>2.1</b> It is understood that the CITY will designate a representative for the Work. Th REPRESENTATIVE referred to in any of the Contract Documents designated herein is <b>Carlos Stormwater Utility Manager</b> , at City of Doral Government Center, 8401 NW 53 <sup>rd</sup> Terrac Florida 33166.	Arroy	<u>/0,</u>
2.2 The CITY's ARCHITECT referred to in any of the Contract Documents designated h	nerein	is
<b>2.3</b> The CITY's ENGINEER referred to in any of the Contract Documents designated herein <b>Gomez, P.E., Public Works Director</b> , at City of Doral Government Center, 8401 NW 53 <sup>rd</sup> Doral, Florida 33166.		
ARTICLE 3 – TERM		
3.1 Contract Times. Contract Time will commence on the date the Agreement is execushall continue consequently for a period of <b>two hundred and ten (210) calendar days</b> . We be completed ("Final Completion") and shall be ready for final payment in accordance value Contract Documents within thirty (30) calendar days from the date substantial completed.	ork sha vith th	all ne

- **3.2** Term. This Contract shall not be effective until it is fully executed between the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. The term of the Contract shall be through the date of final payment unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 00710 General Conditions, Article 12, Suspension of Work and Termination.
- **3.3** Survival of Obligations. Any obligations by the CONTRACTOR, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 00710 General Conditions, Article 12, Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee, that would or could occur after the date of expiration or termination of the Contract shall survive the termination or expiration of the Contract.

- 2.4 Liquidated Damages. CITY and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence in this Contract and that the CITY will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the contract times specified in Section 3.1 for the Work above, plus any approved extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the General Conditions. The CONTRACTOR also recognizes the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving the actual loss suffered by CITY if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall pay CITY \$1,584.00 for each calendar day that expires after the time specified in Section 3.1 for Substantial Completion of the Work. After Final Completion, if CONTRACTOR shall neglect, refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the time specified in Section 3.1 for completion and readiness for final payment or any proper extension thereof granted by CITY, CONTRACTOR shall pay CITY \$1,584.00 for each calendar day that expires after the time specified in Section 3.1 for completion and readiness for final payment.
- 3.5 Should the Final Completion and acceptance of Work, together with any modification or additions, be delayed beyond the time for performance set in Section 3.1 above because of lack of performance by the CONTRACTOR, it is understood and agreed that aside from any other liquidated damages, all actual additional costs or losses incurred by the CITY including, but not limited to, completion contractor services, financing, professional services, unrealized revenue, will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.
- 3.6 Monies due to the CITY under Sections 3.4 and 3.5 shall be deducted from any monies due the CONTRACTOR, or if no money is due or the amount due is insufficient to cover the amount charged the CONTRACTOR shall be liable for said amount.

#### ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT PRICE

4.1	CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract
Docum	nents an amount in current funds equal to the sum of the amounts determined pursuant to
this Art	ticle. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the Work at a not to exceed amount of
	<del> </del>

(written amount)

- **4.1.1** For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of that item as indicated on the Unit Price Bid Form Section 00410. Estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and determination of actual quantities and classification are to be made by ENGINEER as provided in the Contract Documents.
- **4.2** The CONTRACTOR agrees that all specific cash allowances are included in the above Contract Price and have been computed in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 5 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES**

**5.1** CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with the Section 00710 - General Conditions, Article 11, Payments to Contractor and Completion. Applications for Payment will be processed by CITY as provided in the General Conditions.

- **5.2** Progress Payments, Retainage. CITY shall make progress payments, deducting the amount from the Contract Price above, on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payment as recommended by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, on or about the last day of each month during construction as provided herein. All such payments will be made in accordance with the schedule of values established in the General Conditions or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the General Conditions.
- **5.2.1** No progress payment shall be made until CONTRACTOR delivers to the CITY complete original partial releases of all liens and claims signed by all Subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers, and vendors, indicating amount of partial payment, on a form approved by the CITY, and an affidavit that so far as the CONTRACTOR has knowledge or information, the releases include and cover all Materials and Work for which a lien or claim could be filed for work completed to date.
- 5.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees that ten percent (10%) of the amount due for Work as set forth in each Application for Payment shall be retained by CITY for each Progress Payment until Final Payment, as defined in Section 00710 General Conditions, Article 11, Payments to Contractor and Completion.
- **5.3.1** Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated above, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE shall determine, or CITY may withhold, in accordance with the General Conditions.
- 5.4 The payment of any Application for Payment by CITY, including the Final Request, does not constitute approval or acceptance by CITY of any item of the Work in such Request for Payment, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any of CITY's rights hereunder or at law or in equity.
- 5.5 The Final Application for Payment by CONTRACTOR shall not be made until the CONTRACTOR delivers to the CITY the Project As-Built and complete original releases of all liens and claims signed by all Subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers, and vendors on a form approved by the CITY, and an affidavit that so far as the CONTRACTOR has knowledge or information, the releases include and cover all Materials and Work for which a lien or claim could be filed. The CONTRACTOR may, if any Subcontractor, materialmen, supplier or vendor refuses to furnish the required Final Waiver of Lien, furnish a bond satisfactory to CITY to defend and indemnify CITY and any other property owner, person or entity CITY may be required to indemnify against any lien or claim.
- **5.6** Final Payment. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with the General Conditions, CITY shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price and any retainage as recommended by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE.

#### ARTICLE 6 - INSURANCE/INDEMNIFICATION.

6.1 Insurance. The CONTRACTOR shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract, insurance of such type and in such amounts necessary to protect its interest and the interest of the CITY against hazards or risks of loss as specified in the General Conditions of the Contract Documents.

**6.2** Indemnification. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY, their officials, agents, employees, and volunteers as set forth in General Conditions of the Contract Documents.

#### <u>ARTICLE 7 – CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.</u>

In order to induce CITY to enter into this Contract, CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

- 7.1 CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents (including the Addenda) and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents including "technical data."
- 7.2 <u>CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.</u>
- **7.3** CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the Work.
- 7.4 CONTRACTOR has made, or caused to be made, examinations, investigations, tests, or studies as necessary to determine surface and subsurface conditions at or on the site. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that CITY does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to underground facilities at or contiguous to the site. CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all such additional supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by CONTRACTOR and safety precautions and programs incident thereto. CONTRACTOR does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance and furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 7.5 The CONTRACTOR is aware of the general nature of Work to be performed by CITY and others at the site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- **7.6** The CONTRACTOR has correlated the information known to CONTRACTOR, information and observations obtained from visits to the site, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data with the Contract Documents.
- 7.7 The CONTRACTOR has given the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE is acceptable to CONTRACTOR, and the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- 7.8 The CONTRACTOR warrants the following:

- **7.8.1** Anti-Discrimination: The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will not discriminate against any employees or applicants for employment or against persons for any other benefit or service under this Contract because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or physical or mental handicap where the handicap does not affect the ability of an individual to perform in a position of employment, and to abide by all federal and state laws regarding non-discrimination.
- 7.8.2 Anti-Kickback: The CONTRACTOR warrants that no person has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, and that no employee or officer of the CITY or any other applicable federal or state agency, has any interest, financially or otherwise, in the Project. For breach or violation of this warranty, the CITY shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Contract Price or consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.
- **7.8.3** Licensing and Permits: The CONTRACTOR warrants that it shall have, prior to commencement of work under this Contract and at all times during said work, all required licenses and permits whether federal, state, County or City.
- **7.8.4** Public Entity Crime Statement: The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not been place on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime, as specified in Section 00456, of the Instructions to Bidders.

#### **ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.**

- **8.1** The Contract Documents listed below, which are listed in their order of precedence for the purpose of resolving conflicts, errors and discrepancies, by this reference shall become a part of the Contract as though physically attached as a part thereof:
  - 8.1.1 Change Orders.
  - **8.1.2** Field Orders.
  - **8.1.3** Contract for Construction.
  - 8.1.4 Exhibits to this Contract.
  - 8.1.5 Supplementary Conditions.
  - **8.1.6** General Conditions.
  - 8.1.7 Any federal, state, county or city permits for the Project
  - 8.1.8 Specifications bearing the title: Miami-Dade County and FDOT Standards.
  - 8.1.9 Drawings consisting of a cover sheet and inclusive of all sheets bearing the following general title: <u>City of Doral Basin H-8 Drainage Improvements.</u>

- **8.1.10** Bid Documents, including but not limited to: Addendum, Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form provided by CONTRACTOR, Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed.
- **8.1.11** Addenda subject matter takes the same precedence of the respective subject matter that it is modifying. Furthermore, each subsequent addendum takes precedence over previous addenda.
- **8.1.12** The documents listed above shall be incorporated into this Contract (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
- **8.1.13** There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.
- **8.1.14** The Contract Documents shall remain the property of the CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall have the right to keep one record set of the Contract Documents upon completion of the Project; provided; however, that in no event shall the CONTRACTOR use, or permit to be used, any or all of such Contract Documents on other projects without the City's prior written authorization.
- **8.1.15** The General Conditions discuss the bond and surety requirements of the CITY. This Contract does [x], does not [] require bonds. If the Contract does not require bonds, the references to bonds in the General Conditions do not apply to this Contract.

#### **ARTICLE 9 – MISCELLANEOUS.**

- **9.1** Terms used in this Contract which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. Terms used in Article 1 of the Instructions to Bidders also apply to this Contract.
- **9.2** Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents with respect to subcontractors, no assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding on another party thereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.
- **9.3** CITY and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.
- **9.4** Severability. Should any provision, paragraph, sentence, word, or phrase contained in this Contract be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable under the laws of the State of Florida, such provision, paragraph, sentence, word, or

phrase shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary in order to conform with such laws, then shall be deemed severable, and in this Contract, shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect.

- **9.5** Remedies. If and when any default of this Contract occurs, the CITY may avail itself of any legal or equitable remedies that may apply, including, but not limited to, actual damages and specific performance. Such remedies may be exercised in the sole discretion of the CITY. Nothing contained in this Contract shall limit the CITY from pursuing any legal or equitable remedies that may apply.
- **9.6** Access to Public Records. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The CITY shall have the right to immediately terminate this contract for the refusal by the Contractor to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall retain all records associated with this Contract for a period of five (5) years from the date of Final Payment or Termination of this Contract.
- 9.7 Inspection and Audit. During the term of this Contract and for five (5) years from the date of Termination, the CONTRACTOR shall allow CITY representatives access during reasonable business hours to CONTRACTOR'S records related to this Contract for the purposes of inspection or audit of such records. If upon an audit of such records, the CITY determines the CONTRACTOR was paid for services not performed, upon receipt of written demand by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall remit such payments to the CITY.
- **9.8** Counterparts. This contract may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- **9.9** Notices. Whenever any party is required to give or deliver any notice to any other party, or desires to do so, such notices shall be sent via certified mail or hand delivery to:

FOR CITY:	Edward Rojas, City Manager City of Doral 8401 NW 53 <sup>rd</sup> Terrace Doral, Florida 33166
WITH COPY TO:	Daniel A. Espino, Esq., City Attorney Weiss, Serota, Helfman, Cole, & Bierman, PL 2525 Ponce De Leon Boulevard, 7 <sup>th</sup> Floor Coral Gables, FL 33134
FOR CONTRACTOR:	

**9.10** WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL AND VENUE. The CITY and CONTRACTOR knowingly, irrevocably, voluntarily and intentionally waive any right either may have to a trial by jury in State and or Federal

court proceedings in respect to any action, proceeding, lawsuit or counterclaim based upon the Contract, arising out of, under, or in connection with the Work, or any course of conduct, course of dealing, statements or actions or inactions of any party. The venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Contract shall be in Miami-Dade County, Florida.

- **9.11** Attorneys' Fees. If either the CITY or CONTRACTOR is required to enforce the terms of the Contract by court proceedings or otherwise, whether or not formal legal action is required, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all such costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, court costs, and reasonable attorneys' fees at the trial and appellate level.
- **9.12** Amendments. This Contract may only be amended by the prior written approval of the parties or by execution of a Change Order in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B".

(Contractor), signing by and through its, duly authorized to execute same.
CONTRACTOR
(Contractor)
(Signature)
(Print Name and Title)

ATTEST	CITY OF DORAL	
Connie Diaz, City Clerk	Edward Rojas, City Manager	_
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR AND BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF DORAL ONL		
Daniel Espino, City Attorney		

<sup>(\*)</sup> In the event that the Contractor is a corporation, there shall be attached to each counterpart a certified copy of a resolution of the board of the corporation, authorizing the officer who signs the contract to do so in its behalf.

## **CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL**

1, Mano Gowzalezcertify that I am the President of
Bid with the City of Doral, Miami-Dade County, Florida for Maggole Tree, is
Dre side of said Corporation with full authority to sign said Bid on behalf of the
Corporation.
Signed and sealed this 16 day of Septembr, 2016
(SEAL)
Signature /
Mario Gonzalez/President Type Name and Title
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE
COUNTY OF IMILAIMI-DADE
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this 15 day of September 2016.
My Commission Expires:  DANIEL SANCHEZ  Commission # GG 8929  My Commission Expires 07-06-2020  Bonded Through  American Association of Notaries

Notary Public

## **CERTIFICATE AS TO AUTHORIZED CORPORATE PERSONNEL**

I, <u>Mario</u> <u>Maggolc</u> County, Florida, for th	Exe, certify that I am the, who signed the B e project titled <u>Stormwater In</u>	President of id with the City of Doral, Miami-Dade uprov: Subbasin and that
(Signature)	have the authority to sign payment required for cale value (Typed Name)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
(Signature)	(Typed Name)	(Title)
(Signature)	(Typed Name)	(Title)
(SEAL)	Goraler/Prese	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MIAMI-DA	DE	
SWORN TO AND SUBSC	CRIBED before me this 15 day of Sep	tember, 20/6.
My Commission Expires	DANIEL SANCHEZ Commission # GG 8829 My Commission Expires 07-06-2020 Bonded Through American Association of Notaries	
Notary Public	<del>-</del>	

## **SECTION 00510 - NOTICE OF AWARD**

To:
<del></del>
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: City of Doral <u>Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23</u> i accordance with Contract Documents as prepared by the City
and
The City has considered the Bid submitted by you for the above described WORK in response to it Advertisement for Bid and Instruction to BIDDERS.
You are hereby notified that your Bid has been accepted for the City of Doral <b>Stormwate Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23</b> , in a not to exceed amount of \$
(Written Amount)
You are required by the instruction to BIDDER's to execute the Agreement and furnish the required CONTRACTOR's Performance Bond, Payment Bond and Certificated of Insurance within ten (10) days from the date of this Notice to you.
If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said Bonds and Insurance within ten (10) days from the date of this Notice, said City will be entitled to, revoke the award and retain the Bid Security.
Ву:
Title: City Manager
Dated this day of

## **ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE OF AWARD**

reby acknowledge by
, 20

## **SECTION 00550 - NOTICE TO PROCEED**

To:		Date:
_		
		provements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23, in accordance with
Contract D	ocuments as prepared by the	City of Doral.
Site Numb	er/Name:	
Site Location	on:	
		If the work that conforms to the scope of work in accordance  This work is to be completed in
	calendar days, on or befo	pre, with both parties being in total
		shall be subject to the liquidated damages clauses of the
	The cost to perform the scop	oe of work in accordance with the Agreement shall not exceed
City of Dora	al	
Ву:		
-,· <u>-</u>	Edward Rojas	<del>_</del>
Title:	City Manager	

## **ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE TO PROCEED**

Receipt o	f the above NOTICE TO PROC	EED is hereby acknowledged by	
This	day of	20	
Ву:			
Title:			

## SECTION 00600 - BONDS AND CERTIFICATES

N/A

#### **SECTION 00612 - FORM OF PAYMENT BOND**

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

conditions:

Tha Pri	at, pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statute 255.05, we,as ncipal, hereinafter called Contractor, and, as rety, are bound to the City of Doral, Florida, as Obligee, hereinafter called City, in the amount of
Sur	ety, are bound to the City of Doral, Florida, as Obligee, hereinafter called City, in the amount of
bin	lars (\$) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety d themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally.
Stol pre	WHEREAS, Contractor has by written agreement entered into a Contract, ITB# 2013-31, and theday of, 20, with the City for City of Doral remwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23, in accordance with specifications pared by the City of Doral which Contract is by reference made a part hereof, and is hereafter erred to as the Contract;
	THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if the Contractor:
1.	Indemnifies and pay Obligee all losses, damages (including, but not limited to, damages for delay (specifically, liquidated damages as per section 00710 – General Conditions of the ITB and section 3.4 of the Construction Contract) and actual damages caused or arising out of the acts, omissions or negligence of Contractor), expenses, costs, and attorney's fees including attorney's fees incurred in appellate proceedings, that Obligee sustain because of default by Contractor under the Contract; and
2.	Promptly makes payments to all claimants as defined by Florida Statute 255.05(1) supplying Contractor with all labor, materials and supplies used directly or indirectly by Contractor in the prosecution of the Work provided for in the Contract, then this obligation shall be void;

2.1 A claimant, except a laborer, who is not in privity with the Contractor and who has not received payment for their labor, materials, or supplies shall, within forty-five (45) days after beginning to furnish labor, materials, or supplies for the prosecution of the Work, furnish to the Contractor a notice that they intend to look to the Bond for protection.

otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect subject, however, to the following

- 2.2 A claimant who is not in privity with the Contractor and who has not received payment for their labor, materials, or supplies shall, within ninety (90) days after performance of the labor, or after complete delivery of the materials or supplies, deliver to the Contractor and to the Surety, written notice of the performance of the labor or delivery of the materials or supplies and of the non-payment.
- 2.3 No action for the labor, materials, or supplies may be instituted against Contractor or the Surety unless the notices stated under the preceding paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 have been given.
- 2.4 Any action under this Bond must be instituted in accordance with the Notice and Time Limitations provisions prescribed in Section 255.05(2), Florida Statutes.

The Surety hereby waives notice of and agrees that any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any formalities connected with the Contract or the changes do not affect the Surety's obligation under this Bond.

Signed and sealed this	day of		, 20
WITNESS:			
		Ву:	
			(Signature and Title)
(CORPORATE SEAL)			
			(Type Name and Title signed above)
WITNESS:			
			(Name of Corporation)
Secretary		By:	
		•	(Type Name and Title signed above)

IN THE PRESENCE OF;	OF; INSURANCE COMPANY:			
	By:			
		*Agent and Attorney-in-fact		
	Address:			
	(Street)			
(City/	State/Zip Code)			
-	Telephone No.:	()		
* (Power of Attorney must be	attached)			
State of				
County of				
On this, the	day of	, 20, before me, the undersigned		
Notary Public of the State of		_, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged by		
(title), of	(name of c (na	me of Corporation), a (state of corporation)		
corporation, on behalf of the c		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
WITNESS my hand				
And official seal				
		Notary Public, State of		
		Printed, typed or stamped name of Notary		
		Public exactly as commissioned		
		Personally known to me, or		
		☐ Personally identification:		
		(Type of Identification Produced)		
		☐ Did take an oath, or		
		☐ Did NOT take an oath		

## **CERTIFICATES TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL**

l,	, certify that I am the	Secretary of the Corporation named as
		, who signed the
		of said corporation; that
		thereto is genuine; and that said Bond
was duly signed, sealed and a	attested to on behalf of said C	orporation by authority of its governing
body.		
(COROPORATE SEAL)		
	(Name o	of Corporation)

#### **SECTION 00614 - FORM OF PERFORMANCE BOND**

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESES PRESENTS:

default, or shall promptly:

	That, pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statute 255.05, we,
as P	rincipal, hereinafter called Contractor, and, as
Sure	ty, are bound to the City of Doral, Florida, as Obligee, hereinafter called City, in the amount of Dollars
	) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind nselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally.
Impr the C	WHEREAS, Contractor has by written agreement entered into a Contract, ITB #2016-23, rded the day of, 20, with the City of Doral for <u>Stormwater</u> <u>rovements: Sub-Basin H-8</u> , in accordance with drawings (plans) and specification prepared by City of Doral which Contract is by reference made a part hereof, and is hereafter referred to as Contract;
THE	CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if the Contractor:
1.	Fully performs the Contract between the Contractor and the City for <u>Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8</u> , as scheduled after the date of Contract commencement as specified in the Notice to Proceed and in the manner prescribed in the Contract; and bid specifications.
2.	Indemnifies and pay Obligee all losses, damages (including, but not limited to, damages for delay (specifically, liquidated damages as per section 00710 – General Conditions of the ITB and section 3.4 of the Construction Contract) and actual damages caused or arising out of the acts, omissions or negligence of Contractor), expenses, costs, and attorney's fees including attorney's fees incurred in appellate proceedings, that Obligee sustain because of default by Contractor under the Contract; and
3.	Upon notification by the City, corrects any and all defective or faulty Work or materials which appear within <b>ONE (1) YEAR</b> from the final acceptance notice.
4.	Performs the guarantee of all Work and materials furnished under the Contract for the time

Whenever Contractor shall be, and declared by City to be, in default under the Contract, the City having performed City's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the

- 4.1 Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or
- 4.2 Obtain a Bid or Bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by Surety of the best, lowest, qualified, responsible and responsive BIDDER, or, if the City elects, upon determination by the City, and Surety jointly of the best, lowest, qualified, responsible and responsive BIDDER, arrange for a Contract between such BIDDER and City, and make available as Work progress (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the Contract Price, but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term "balance of the Contract Price" as used in this paragraph, shall mean that total amount payable by City to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments thereto, less the amount properly paid by City to Contractor.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or Corporation other than the City named herein.

The Surety hereby waives notice of and agrees that any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any formalities connected with the Contractor of the changes do not affect Surety's obligation under this Bond.

Signed and sealed this	day of	20
WITNESS:		<u></u>
(Name of Corporation)		
By:		
Secretary		(Signature and Title)
(CORPORATE SEAL)		
		(Type Name & Title signed above)

IN THE PRESENCE OF;	INSURANC	E COMPANY:
	Ву:	
		*Agent and Attorney-in-fact
	Address:	
	(Street)	
/City./5	State /7in Code)	
(City/s	State/Zip Code)	
Т	elephone No.:	()
* (Power of Attorney must be	attached)	
State of		
County of		
- 4.		
		, 20, before me, the undersigned
		, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged by prporate officer),
(title), of	(nan	ne of Corporation), a (state of corporation)
corporation, on behalf of the co		
WITNESS my hand And official seal		
And official Seal		
		Notary Public, State of
		Printed, typed or stamped name of Notary Public exactly as commissioned
		☐ Personally known to me, or
		☐ Personally identification:
		(Type of Identification Produced)
		☐ Did take an oath, or
		☐ Did NOT take an oath
	Bonded by:	

# SECTION 00620 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CONFORMANCE WITH OSHA STANDARDS

To the City of Doral,
We <u>Maggolc Ive</u> , hereby acknowledge and (General Contractor)
agree that we, as the General Contractor for the City of Doral, <u>Stormwater Improvements:</u> <u>Sub-Basin H-8, ITB #2016-23</u> , as specified, have the sole responsibility for compliance with all requirements of the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, and all State and local safety and health regulations, and agree to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Doral, against any and all liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses they may incur due to the failure of:
Miani Striping Inc. (Subcontractor's Name)
CAR Milling and Barring The (Subcontractor's Name)
to comply with such act or regulation.
By: (General Contractor)  Mario Gonzalez President.  Printed Name
Printed Name

**END OF SECTION** 

# **SECTION 00710 – GENERAL CONDITIONS**

# <u>ARTICLE I – DEFINITIONS</u>

Wherever used in these General Conditions or in the other Contract Documents, the following terms shall have the meaning indicated which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:

Acceptance: By the CITY of the Work as being fully complete in accordance with the Contract Documents subject to waiver of claims.

Agreement: The written Agreement between the CITY and the CONTRACTOR covering the Work to be performed, which includes the Contract Documents.

Addenda: Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the Bid Opening which modify or interpret the Contract Documents, Drawings and Specifications, by addition, deletions, clarifications or corrections.

Application for Payment: The form furnished by the CITY which is to be used by the CONTRACTOR in requesting progress payments.

Approved: Means approved by the CITY.

Bid: The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.

BIDDER: Any person, firm or corporation submitting a Bid for Work.

Bonds: Bid, Performance and Payment Bonds and other instruments of security, furnished by the CONTRACTOR and their surety in accordance with the Contract Documents and in accordance with the law of the State of Florida.

Change Order: A written order to the CONTRACTOR signed by the CITY authorizing an addition, deletion or revision in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time issued after execution of the Agreement.

CITY: City of Doral, 8401 NW 53<sup>rd</sup> Terrace Doral, Florida 33166.

Contract Documents: Contract Documents shall include Instruction to BIDDERS, CONTRACTOR's Bid, the Bonds, the Notice of Award, these General Conditions, Special Conditions, the Technical Specifications, Drawings and Modifications, Notice to Proceed, Invitation to Bid, Insurance Certificates, Change Orders and Acknowledgement of Conformance with the City of Doral.

Contract Price: The total moneys payable to the CONTRACTOR under the Contract

#### Documents.

Contract Time: The number of calendar days stated in the Agreement for the completion of the Work.

Contracting Officer: The individual who is authorized to sign the contract documents on behalf of the City's governing body.

CONTRACTOR: The person, firm of corporation with whom the CITY has executed the Agreement.

CONSULTANT: The person, firm or corporation that is an authorized representative of the City of Doral.

Day: A calendar day of twenty-four (24) hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.

Drawings: The drawings which show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and which have been prepared of approved by the CONSULTANT and are referred to in the Contract Documents.

Field Order: A written order issued by the CITY which clarified or interprets the Contract Documents in accordance with Paragraph 9.2 or orders minor changes in the Work in accordance with Paragraph 10.2.

Modifications: (a) A written amendment of the Contract Documents signed by both parties, (b) a Change Order, (c) a written clarification or interpretation if issued by the CITY in accordance with Paragraph 9.2 or (d) a written order for minor change or alteration in the Work issued by the CITY pursuant to Paragraph 10.2. A modification may only be issued after execution of the Agreement.

Notice of Award: A written notice given by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run and on which the CONTRACTOR shall start to perform their obligations under the Contract Documents.

Project: The entire Project to be performed as provided in the Contract Documents.

Construction Observer: An authorized representative of the CITY assigned to observe the Work performed and materials furnished by the CONTRACTOR or such other person as may be appointed by the CITY as his representative. The CNTRACTOR shall be notified in writing of the identity of this representative.

Shop Drawings: All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules and other data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, a Subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, and which illustrate the equipment, material or some portion of the work and as required by the Contracts Documents.

Samples: Physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the Work will be judged.

Specifications: Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work.

Subcontractor: An individual, firm or corporation having a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the site.

Substantial Completion: The date as certified by the CITY when the construction of the Project or a certified part thereof is sufficiently completed, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Project or specified part can be utilized for the purposes which it was intended; or if there be no such certification, the date when final payment is due.

Supplier: Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for the Work, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform labor at the site.

Surety: The corporate body which is bound with the CONTRACTOR and which engages to be responsible for the CONTRACTOR and their acceptance performance of the Work.

Work: Any and all obligations, duties and responsibilities necessary to the successful completion of the Project assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR under the Contract Documents, including all labor, materials, equipment and other incidentals, and the furnishing thereof.

Written Notice: The term "Notice" as used herein shall mean and include all written notices, demands, instructions, claims, approvals and disapprovals required to obtain compliance with Contract requirements. Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended, or to an authorized representative or such individual, firm, or corporation, or if delivered at or sent by registered mail to the last business address known to them who gives the notice. Unless otherwise stated in writing, any notice to or demand upon the CITY under this Contract shall be delivered to the CITY.

#### ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS

#### Award:

2.1 The CITY reserves the right to reject any and all Bids at its sole discretion. Bids shall be awarded by the CITY to the lowest responsive and responsible BIDDER; after the CITY performs all necessary searches, inquiries, exploration, and analysis of the bids. No Notice of Award will be given until the CITY has conducted any investigation(s) as they deem necessary to establish the BIDDER's capability to perform the services as described in this

CONTRACT, as substantiated by the required professional experience, client references, technical knowledge and qualifications; and sufficient labor and equipment to comply with the CITY's established standards, as well as the financial capability of the BIDDER to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to the satisfaction of the CITY within the time prescribed. The CITY reserves the right to reject the Bid of any BIDDER on the basis of these queries and investigations and who does not meet the CITY's satisfaction, even though the firm may possibly be the apparent lowest bidder. In analyzing Bids, the CITY will also take into consideration client references, past work experience and work product, proven ability to satisfactorily perform the manufacturing and installation of roadway directional signage to CITY standards; and alternate and unit prices if requested by the Bid form. If the Contract is awarded, the CITY will issue the Notice of Award and give the successful BIDDER a Contract for execution within ninety (90) days after opening of Bids. The CITY specifically reserves the right to award the Contract to a bidder who is not necessarily the lowest bidder on the basis of the results of these queries and investigation(s).

## **Execution of Agreement:**

2.2 At least three counterparts of the Agreement, the Performance and Payment Bond, the Certificates of Insurance and such other Documents as required by the Contract Documents shall be executed and delivered by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Notice of Award.

# Forfeiture of Bid Security/Performance and Payment Bond:

- **2.3** Within ten (10) calendar days of being notified of the Award, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond containing all the provisions of the Performance Bond and Payment Bond attached.
  - **2.3.1** Each Bond shall be in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price guaranteeing to the CITY the completion and performance of the Work covered in such Contract as well as full payment of all suppliers, material man, laborers, of Subcontractors employed pursuant to this Project. Each Bond shall be with a Surety company meeting the qualifications of Sections 2.3.4, 2.3.5, and 2.3.6.
  - 2.3.2 Each Bond shall continue in effect for one and one half (1 ½) years after final completion and acceptance of the Work with the liability equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Sum. The Performance Bond shall be conditioned that the CONTRACTOR will, upon notification by the CITY, correct any defective or faulty Work or materials which appear within one (1) year after final completion of the Contract.
  - **2.3.3** Pursuant to the requirements of Section 255.05(1), Florida Statutes, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the Bond(s) referenced above shall be recorded in the public records of Dade County and Provide the CITY with evidence of such recording.
  - 2.3.4 Each Bond must be executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of Florida as a surety, having a resident agent in the State of Florida and

having been in business with a record of successful continuous operation for at least five (5) years.

- **2.3.5** The surety company shall hold a current certificate of authority as acceptable surety on federal bonds in accordance with the United States Department of Treasury Circular 570, current Revisions.
- 2.3.6 The CITY will accept a surety bond from a company with a rating of A- or better.
- **2.3.7** Failure of the successful BIDDER to execute and deliver the Agreement and deliver the required bonds and Insurance Certificates as stipulated in paragraph 2.2 shall be cause for the CITY to annul the Notice of Award and declare the Bid and any security therefore forfeited.

# **Contractor's Pre-Start Representation:**

2.4 The CONTRACTOR represents that they have familiarized themselves with, and assumes full responsibility for having familiarized themselves with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, locality, and with all local conditions and federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect performance of the Work, and represents that they have correlated their study and observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR also represents that they have studied all surveys and investigations reports of subsurface and latent physical conditions referred to in the specifications and made such additional surveys and investigations as they deem necessary for the performance of the Work in the Contract Documents and that they have correlated the results of all such data with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Additional monies will not be paid, over and above the CONTRACT amount, in the event rock is encountered.

# **Commencement of Contract Time:**

**2.5** The Contract Time will start on the date the Agreement is executed and will continue to run consecutively for the period of *two hundred and ten (210) calendar days*. No extension of time will be given unless stated in writing.

#### **Starting the Project:**

2.6 The CONTRACTOR shall start to perform their obligations under the Contract Documents on the date stipulated in the Notice to Proceed (NTP). No Work shall be done at the site prior to the date on which the NTP commences to run, except with the written consent of the CITY. No work will be done on Saturday without written consent of the CITY or after the end of a normal business day unless prior approval is given by the CITY in writing. No work shall be permitted on Sundays or on national holidays.

## **Before Starting Contract:**

2.7 Before undertaking each part of the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures shown thereon and all applicable field measurements which shall be approximate. The CONTRACTOR shall field verify

utility locations and notify the CITY of any conflicts so that the conflict is avoided prior to beginning of construction. Any modifications to the proposed work, once construction has begun, will be at no cost to the CITY.

## Schedule of Completion:

- **2.8** Within five (5) days after delivery of the Notice to Proceed, the CONTRACTOR will submit to the City, a Schedule defining hours and/or days required to complete each section of work as outlined.
- **2.9** Within five (5) days after delivery of the executed Agreement by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR, but before starting the Work, a preconstruction conference will be held to review the above schedules, and provide procedures for processing Applications for Payment, and to establish a working understanding between the parties as to the Project. Present at the conference will be the CITY representative(s), and the CONTRACTOR.

# Liquidated Damages:

**2.10** Upon failure of the CONTRACTOR to complete the Work within the time specified for completion, (plus approved extensions if any) the CONTRACTOR shall pay to the CITY the sum of **ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY FOUR AND 00/100 (\$1,584)** for each calendar day that the completion of the Work is delayed beyond the time specified in the Contract for completion, as fixed and agreed liquidated damages and not as a penalty. Liquidated damages are hereby fixed and agreed upon between the parties, recognizing the impossibility of precisely ascertaining the amount of damages that will be sustained by the CITY as a consequence of such delay and both parties desiring to obviate any question of dispute concerning the amount of said damages and the cost and effect of the failure of the CONTRACTOR to complete the Contract on time. Regardless of whether or not a single Contract is involved, the above-stated liquidated damages shall apply separately to each portion of the Work for which a time of completion is given. The CITY shall have the right to deduct from and retain out moneys which may be then due or which may become due and payable to the CONTRACTOR, the amount of such liquidated damages, the CONTRACTOR shall pay in full such liquidated damages.

# ARTICLE 3 - CORRELATION, INTERPRETATION AND INTENT OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 3.1 It is the intent of the Specifications to describe a complete Project to be delivered in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents comprise the entire Agreement between the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. They may be altered only by a Modification.
- **3.2** The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as binding as if called for by all. If CONTRACTOR finds a conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, they shall call it to the City's attention in writing at once and before proceeding with the Work affected thereby; however, they shall not be liable to CITY or CONTRACTOR for their failure to discover any conflict, error or discrepancy in the Specifications or Drawings. The various Contract Documents shall be given precedence in case of conflict, error or discrepancy, as follows: Change Orders, Supplemental General Conditions, Agreement

Modifications, Addenda, Special Conditions, Instructions to BIDDERS, General Conditions, Specifications and Drawings. If the requirements of other Contract Documents are more stringent than those of the Supplemental General Conditions, the more stringent requirements shall apply.

- **3.3** The words "furnish" and "furnish and install", "install", and "provide" or words with similar meaning shall be interpreted, unless otherwise specifically stated, to mean "furnish and install complete in place and ready for service".
- 3.4 Miscellaneous items and accessories which are not specifically mentioned, but which are essential to produce a complete and properly operating installation, or usable structure or plant, providing the indicated function, shall be furnished and installed without change in the Contract Price. Such miscellaneous items and accessories shall be of the same quality standards, including material, style, finish, strength, class, weight and other applicable characteristics, as specified for the major component of which the miscellaneous item or accessory is an essential part, and shall be approved by the CITY before installation. The above requirement is not intended to include major components not covered by or inferable from the Drawings and Specifications.
- 3.5 The Work of all trades under this Contract shall be coordinated by the CONTRACTOR in such manner as to obtain the best workmanship possible for the entire Project, and all components of the Work shall be installed or erected in accordance with the best practices of the particular trade.

# ARTICLE 4 - AVAILABILITY OF LANDS SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS REFERENCE POINTS

#### **Availability of Lands:**

**4.1** The CITY will furnish, as indicated in the Contract Documents, the lands upon which the Work is to be done, rights-of-way for access thereto, and such other lands which are designed for the use of the CONTRACTOR. Easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities will be obtained and paid for by the CITY unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 5 – INSURANCE**

- 5.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain in force until all the Work to be performed under this Contract has been completed and accepted by City (or for such duration as is otherwise specified hereinafter), the insurance coverage set forth: in Exhibit A titled Insurance Requirements.
- 5.2 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if any part of the Work under the Contract is sublet, they will require the Subcontractor(s) to carry insurance as required, and that they will require the Subcontractor(s) to furnish to them insurance certificates similar to those required by the CITY in Section 5.1.

#### Cancellation and Re-Insurance:

- 5.3 If any insurance should be canceled or changed by the insurance company or should any insurance expire during the period of this contract, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for securing other acceptable insurance to provide the coverage specified in this section to maintain coverage during the life of this Contract.
- **5.4** All deductibles must be declared by the CONTRACTOR and must be approved by the CITY. At the option of the CITY, either the CONTRACTOR shall eliminate or reduce such deductible or the CONTRACTOR shall procure a Bond, in a form satisfactory to the CITY, covering the same. The contractor is responsible for any and all deductibles, if applicable, following a loss.

# **ARTICLE 6 – CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES**

# **Concerning Subcontractors:**

- **6.1** The CONTRACTOR will not employ any Subcontractor, against whom the CITY may have reasonable objection, nor will the CONTRACTOR be required to employ any Subcontractor who has been accepted by the CITY, unless the CITY determines that there is good cause for doing so.
- 6.2 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible for all acts and omissions of their Subcontractors and of persons and organizations directly or indirectly employed by them and of persons and organizations for whose acts any of them may be liable to the same extent that they are responsible for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by them. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between CITY and any Subcontractor or other person or organization having a direct contract with CONTRACTOR, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of CITY to pay or to see to payment of any persons due any Subcontractor or other person or organization, except as may otherwise be required by law. CITY may furnish to any Subcontractor or other person or organization, to the extent practicable, evidence of amounts paid to the CONTRACTOR on account of specified Work done in accordance with the schedule values.
- 6.3 The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control the CONTRACTOR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or delineating the Work performed by any specific trade.
- 6.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees to bind specifically every Subcontractor to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of the CITY.
- 6.5 All Work performed for the CONTRACTOR by a Subcontractor shall be pursuant to an appropriate agreement between the CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor.
- **6.6** The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, Subcontractors, materials and men engaged upon their Work.
  - **6.6.1** The CONTRACTOR shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the Work to bind Subcontractors to the CONTRACTOR by the terms of these General Conditions and other Contract Documents insofar as applicable to the

Work of Subcontractors, and give the CONTRACTOR the same power as regards to terminating any subcontract that the CITY may exercise over the CONTRACTOR under any provisions of the Contract Documents.

- **6.6.2** The CITY will not undertake to settle any differences between the CONTRACTOR and their Subcontractors or between Subcontractors.
- **6.6.3** If in the opinion of the CITY, any Subcontractor on the Project proves to be incompetent or otherwise unsatisfactory, they shall be promptly replaced by the CONTRACTOR if and when directed by the CITY in writing.

#### Laws and Regulations:

6.7 The CONTRACTOR will give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to the Work. If the CONTRACTOR observes that the Specifications or Drawings are at variance therewith, they will give the CITY prompt written notice thereof, and any necessary changes shall be adjusted by an appropriate modification. If the CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the CITY, they will bear all costs arising wherefrom; however, it shall not be their primary responsibility to make certain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.

#### Taxes:

6.8 Cost of all applicable sales consumers, use, and other taxes for which the CONTRACTOR is liable under the Contract shall be included in the Contract Price stated by the CONTRACTOR.

# Safety and Protection:

- 6.9 The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the ROADWAY AND TRAFFIC DESIGN STANDARDS SERIES 600 TRAFFIC CONTROL THROUGH WORK ZONES latest edition. They will take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and will provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
  - 6.9.1 All employees and other persons whom may be affected thereby; and
  - **6.9.2** All the Work and all materials or equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the work area, and
  - **6.9.3** Other property at the work area or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.
- **6.10** The CONTRACTOR will designate a responsible member of their organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the CONTRACTOR'S Superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY.

# **Emergencies:**

- 6.11 In emergencies affecting the safety of persons or the Work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from the CITY, is obligated to act, at their discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. They will give the CITY prompt written notice of any significant changes in the Work or deviations from the Contract Documents caused thereby. If the CONTRACTOR believes that additional Work done by them in an emergency which arose from causes beyond their control entitles them to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, they may make a claim therefore as provided in articles 11 and 12.
- **6.12** The CONTRACTOR will also submit to the CITY for review, with such promptness as to cause no delay in Work, all samples and photographs required by the Contract Documents. All samples and photographs will have been checked by and stamped with the approval of the CONTRACTOR, identified clearly as to material, manufacturer, any pertinent catalog numbers and the use for which intended.
- **6.13** At the time of each submission, the CONTRACTOR will in writing call the CITY'S attention to any deviations that the Photographs or sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- **6.14** The CITY will review with responsible promptness Photographs and Samples, but their review shall be only for conformance with the design concept of the Project and for compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR will make any corrections required by the CITY and will return the required number of corrected copies of Photographs and resubmit new samples until the review is satisfactory to the CITY.
- **6.15** No Work requiring a Photograph or sample submission shall be commenced until the submission has been reviewed by the CITY. A copy of each Photograph and each approved sample shall be kept in good order by the CONTRACTOR at the site and shall be available to the CITY.
- **6.16** The CITY'S review of Photographs or samples shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR from their responsibility for any deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless the CONTRACTOR has in writing called the CITY's attention to each deviation at the time of submission and the CITY has given written approval to the specific deviation, nor shall any review by the CITY relieve the CONTRACTOR from responsibility for supplying the plant material as specified.

#### Public Convenience and Safety:

6.17 The CONTRACTOR shall, at all times, conduct the Work in such a manner as to insure the least practicable obstruction to public travel. The convenience of the general public and of the residents along and adjacent to the area of Work shall be provided for in a satisfactory manner, consistent with the operation and local conditions. Proper Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) devices shall be placed immediately adjacent to the Work, in a conspicuous position, at such locations as traffic demands. The MOT shall be designed as outlined in the latest edition of ROADWAY AND TRAFFIC DESIGN STANDARDS SERIES 600. At any time that streets are required to be closed or

blocked, the CONTRACTOR shall notify law enforcement agencies before the street is closed and again as soon as it is opened. Access to fire hydrants and other fire extinguishing equipment shall be provided and maintained at all times.

#### **Indemnification:**

- In consideration of the separate sum of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) and other valuable consideration, the CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from or on account of any injuries or damages, received or sustained by any person or persons during or on account of any operations connected with the construction of this Project, or by or in consequence of any negligence by or on account of any act or omission of the said CONTRACTOR or his Subcontractor, agents, servants or employees. The CONTRACTOR will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY and their agents or employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim damage, loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting wherefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused by a party indemnified hereunder. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction determines that Sec. 725.06 (2), F.S. is applicable to this Work, then in lieu of the above provisions of this section 6.18 the parties agree that CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, their officers and employees, to the fullest extent authorized by Sec. 725.06 (2) F.S., which statutory provisions shall be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 6.19 In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against CITY by reason of any such claim or demand, CONTRACTOR, upon written notice from CITY shall defend such action or proceeding by counsel satisfactory to CITY. The indemnification provided above shall obligate CONTRACTOR to defend at its own expense or to provide for such defense, at CITY'S option, any and all claims of liability and all suits and actions of every name and description that may be brought against CITY, excluding only those which allege that the injuries arose out of the sole negligence of CITY, which may result from the operations and activities under this Contract whether the construction operations be performed by CONTRACTOR, its Subcontractors or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either.
- 6.20 The obligations of the CONTRACTOR under Article 6 shall not extend to the liability of the CITY, their agents or employees arising out of (a) the preparation or approval of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs or specifications or (b) the giving of or the failure to give directions or instructions by the CITY, their agents or employees provided such giving of failure to give is the primary cause of injury or damage. These indemnification provisions shall survive the term of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 7 – CITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.1 The CITY will issue all communications to the CONTRACTOR.

- **7.2** In cases of termination of employment of the CONTRACTOR, the CITY will appoint a CONTRACTOR, whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former CONTRACTOR.
- 7.3 The CITY will furnish the data required of them under the Contract Documents promptly.
- 7.4 The CITY's duties in respect to providing lands and easements are set forth in Article 4.

# **ARTICLE 8 – CITY'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION**

## **Measurements of Quantities:**

**8.1** All Work completed under the Contract will be measured by the CITY according to the United States Standard Measures. All linear surface measurements will be made horizontally or vertically as required by the item measured.

# Rejecting Defective Work:

**8.2** The CITY will have authority to disapprove or reject Work which is "defective" (which term is hereinafter used to describe Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty or defective, or does not conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval referred to in Special Condition, or has been damaged prior to final acceptance) at CONTRACTOR's expense.

# **Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments:**

- 8.3 In connection with the CITY's responsibility as to Shop Drawings and samples, see paragraphs 6.12 through 6.16, inclusive.
- 8.4 In connection with the CITY'S responsibility for Change Orders, see Articles 9 and 10.
- **8.5** In connection with the CITY'S responsibilities in respect of Application of Payment, etc., see Article 11.

#### **Decisions on Disagreements:**

**8.6** The CITY will be the initial interpreter of the Construction Drawings and Technical Specifications.

#### <u>Limitations on Consultant's Responsibilities:</u>

- **8.7** The CITY will not be responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- **8.8** The CITY will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, or any Subcontractors, or any of their or their agents or employees, or any other person performing any of the Work.

## **ARTICLE 9 – CHANGES IN THE WORK**

- 9.1 Without invalidating the Agreement, the CITY may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions or revisions in the Work; these shall be authorized by Change Orders. Upon receipt of a Change Order, the CONTRACTOR will proceed with the Work involved. All such Work shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. If any Change Order causes an increase or decrease in the Contract Price or an extension or shortening of the Contract Time, an equitable adjustment will be made as provided in Article 11 or Article 12. A Change Order signed by the CONTRACTOR indicates their agreement therewith.
- 9.2 The CITY may authorize minor changes or alterations in the Work not involving extra cost and not inconsistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order. If the CONTRACTOR believes that any minor change or alteration authorized by the CITY entitles them to an increase in the Contract Price or extension of Contract Time, they may make a claim therefore as provided in Articles 11 and 12.
- 9.3 Additional Work performed by the CONTRACTOR without authorization of a Change Order will not entitle them to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, except in the case of an emergency as provided in paragraph 6.11 and except as provided in paragraph 10.2.
- 9.4 The CITY will execute appropriate Change Orders prepared by the CITY covering changes in the Work, to be performed and Work performed in an emergency as provided in paragraph 6.11 and any other claim of the CONTRACTOR for a change in the Contract Time or the Contract Price which is approved by the CITY.
- **9.5** It is the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to notify his Surety of any changes affecting the general scope of the Work or change in the Contract Price or Contract Time and the amount of the applicable bonds shall be adjusted accordingly. The CONTRACTOR will furnish proof of such an adjustment to the CITY.

# **ARTICLE 10 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE**

- **10.1** The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation payable to the CONTRACTOR for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities and obligations assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR shall be at their expense without changing the Contract Price.
- 10.2 (a) The CITY may, at any time, without written notice to the sureties, by written order designated or indicated to be a Change Order, make any change in the Work within the general scope of the Contract, including but not limited to changes:
  - 1) in the specifications (including drawings and designs);

- 2) in the method or manner of performance of the Work;
- 3) in the CITY-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site; or
- 4) in directing acceleration in the performance of the Work.
- (b) Except as herein provided, no order, statement, or conduct of the CITY shall be treated as a change under this clause or entitle the CONTRACTOR to an equitable adjustment hereunder.
- (c) If any change order under this clause causes an increase or decrease in the CONTRACTOR'S cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work, under this Contract, whether or not changed by any order, an equitable adjustment shall be made and the Contract modified in writing accordingly.
- (d) If the CONTRACTOR intends to assert a claim for an equitable adjustment under this clause, he must, within ten (10) days after receipt of a written Change Order, submit to the CITY a written notice including a statement setting forth the general nature and monetary extent of such claim, and supporting data.
- (e) No claim by the CONTRACTOR for an equitable adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if not submitted in accordance with this section or if asserted after final payment under this Contract.
- **10.3** The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following ways:
  - **10.3.1** By negotiated lump sum.
  - 10.3.2 On the basis of the cost of the Work, determined as provided in Sections 10.4 and 10.5, plus a mutually agreed upon fee to the CONTRACTOR to cover overhead and profit.
- 10.4 The term cost of the Work means the sum of all direct costs necessarily incurred and paid by the CONTRACTOR in the proper performance of the Work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by CITY, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in Miami-Dade County, shall include only the following items and shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 10.5.
  - 10.4.1 Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Work described in the Change Order under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by CITY and CONTRACTOR. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall be limited to: salaries and wages, plus the costs of fringe benefits which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. Such

employees shall include superintendents and foremen at the site. The expenses of performing Work after regular working hours, on Sunday or legal holidays shall be included in the above only if authorized by CITY.

- **10.4.2** Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage, and manufacturers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to CONTRACTOR unless CITY deposits funds with CONTRACTOR with which to make payments in which case the cash discounts, shall accrue to the CITY. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds, and all returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to CITY, and CONTRACTOR shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 10.4.3 Payments made by CONTRACTOR to the Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by CITY, CONTRACTOR shall obtain competitive bids from Subcontractors acceptable to him and shall deliver such bids to CITY who will then determine which Bids will be accepted. If a Subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of Work plus a fee, the cost of the Work shall be determined in accordance with paragraphs 10.4 and 10.5.
- 10.4.4 Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery and the parts thereof whether rented from CONTRACTOR or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by CITY with the advice of CONTRACTOR, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, installation, dismantling and removal thereof all in accordance with terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
- **10.4.5** Sales, use or similar taxes related to the Work, and for which CONTRACTOR is liable, imposed by any governmental authority.
- **10.4.6** Payments and fees for permits and licenses. Costs for permits and licenses must be shown as a separate item.
- 10.4.7 The cost of utilities, fuel and sanitary facilities at the site.
- **10.4.8** Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the site, expressage and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- 10.4.9 Cost of premiums for additional Bonds and Insurance required solely because of changes in the Work, not to exceed two percent (2%) of the increase in the Cost of the Work.
- 10.5 The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following:
  - **10.5.1** Payroll costs and other compensation of CONTRACTOR's officers, executives, principals (of partnership and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, architects,

estimators, lawyers, agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks and other personnel employed by CONTRACTOR whether at the site or in his principal or a branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the schedule referred to in subparagraph 10.4.1 - all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the CONTRACTOR's fee.

- **10.5.2** Expenses of CONTRACTOR's principal and branch offices other than his office at the site.
- **10.5.3** Any part of CONTRACTOR's capital expenses, including interest on CONTRACTOR's capital employed for the Work and charges against CONTRACTOR for delinquent payments.
- **10.5.4** Cost of premiums for all bonds and for all insurance policies whether or not CONTRACTOR is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain the same (except as otherwise provided in subparagraph 10.4.9).
- **10.5.5** Costs due to the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them of for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied and making good any damage to property.
- **10.5.6** Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in paragraph 10.4.
- 10.6 The CONTRACTOR's fee which shall be allowed to the CONTRACTOR for their overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
  - **10.6.1** In the event of an oversight or omission by the CONTRACTOR no compensation for overhead or profit will be provided; otherwise.
  - 10.6.2 A mutually acceptable firm fixed price; or if none can be agreed upon.
  - 10.6.3 A ten percent (10%) fixed fee based on the estimate of the various portions of the Cost of the Work.
- 10.7 The amount of credit to be allowed by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the net shall be computed to include overhead and profit, identified separately, for both additions and credit, provided however, the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to claim lost profits for any Work not performed.
- 10.8 Whenever cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to paragraphs 10.4 and 10.5, the CONTRACTOR will submit in form prescribed by CITY an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

#### ARTICLE 11 – PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

#### Payments to Contractor:

11.1 At least ten (10) days before each progress payment falls due (but not more often than once a month), the CONTRACTOR will submit to the CITY a partial payment estimate filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering the Work performed during the period covered by the partial payment estimate and supported by such data as the CITY may reasonably require.

The CITY will within ten (10) days after receipt of each partial payment estimate, either indicate in writing their approval of payment and present the partial payment estimate to the CITY, or return the partial payment estimate to the CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing their reasons for refusing to approve payment. In the latter case, the CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the partial payment estimate. The CITY, will within thirty (30) days of presentation to them of any approved partial payment estimate, pay the CONTRACTOR a progress payment on the basis of the approved partial payment estimate. The CITY may retain ten percent (10%) of the amount of each payment until final completion and acceptance of all Work covered by the Contract Documents. On completion and acceptance of a part of the Work on which the price is stated separately in the Contract Documents, payment may be made in full, including retained percentages, less authorized deductions. Any interest earned on the retainage shall accrue to the benefit of the CITY.

11.2 The CITY shall have the right to demand and receive from the CONTRACTOR, before he shall receive final payment, final releases of lien executed by all persons, firms or corporations who have performed or furnished labor, services or materials, directly or indirectly, used in the Work. Likewise, as a condition to receiving any progress payment, the CITY may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish partial releases of lien executed by all persons, firms and corporations who have furnished labor, services or materials incorporated into the Work during the period of time for which the progress payment is due, releasing such lien rights as those persons, firms or corporations may have for that period.

#### **Contractor's Warranty of Title:**

11.3 The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered by an Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will have passed to the CITY prior to the making of the Application for Payment, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interest and encumbrances (hereafter in these General Conditions referred to as "Liens"); and that no Work, materials or equipment covered by an Application for Payment will have been acquired by the CONTRACTOR or by any other person performing the Work at the site or furnishing materials and equipment for the Project, subject to an agreement under which an interest therein or encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed by the CONTRACTOR or such other person.

## Acceptance of Final Payment as Release:

11.4 The Acceptance by the CONTRACTOR of final payment shall be and shall operate as a release to the CITY and a waiver of all claims and all liability to the CONTRACTOR other than claims in stated amounts as may be specifically excepted by the CONTRACTOR for all things done or furnished in connection with the Work and for every act and neglect of the CITY and others relating to or arising out of this Work. Any payment, however, final or otherwise, shall not release the CONTRACTOR of their sureties from any obligations under the Contract Documents or the

Performance Bond and Payment Bonds.

#### <u>ARTICLE 12 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION</u>

12.1 The CITY may, at any time and without cause, suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than ninety (90) days by notice in writing to the CONTRACTOR which shall fix the date on which Work shall be resumed. For suspensions longer than ninety (90) days, The CONTRACTOR will be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to any suspension if they make a claim therefore as provided in Articles 11 and 12.

## Work During Inclement Weather:

**12.2** No Work shall be done under these specifications except by permission of the CITY when the weather is unfit for good and careful Work to be performed. Should the severity of the weather continue, the CONTRACTOR upon the direction of the CITY, shall suspend all Work until instructed to resume operations by the CITY and the Contract Time pursuant to Section 12.7 shall be extended to cover the duration of the order.

#### **City May Terminate:**

If the CONTRACTOR is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent, or if they make a general assignment for the benefit of their creditors, or if a trustee or receiver is appointed for the CONTRACTOR or for any of their property, or if they file a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under bankruptcy or similar laws, or if they repeatedly fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment, or if they repeatedly fail to make prompt payments to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or equipment or they disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having jurisdiction, or if they disregard the authority of the CITY, or if they otherwise violate any provision of the Contract Documents, then the CITY may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving the CONTRACTOR and their surety seven (7) days written notice, terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR and take possession of the Project and of all materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the CONTRACTOR, and finish the Work by whatever method they may deem expedient. In such case the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the direct and indirect costs of completing the Project, including compensation for additional professional services, such excess shall be paid to the CONTRACTOR. If such costs exceed such unpaid balance, the CONTRACTOR will pay the difference to the CITY. Such costs incurred by the CITY will be determined by the CITY and incorporated in a Change Order.

If after termination of the CONTRACTOR under this Section, it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction for any reason that the CONTRACTOR was not in default, the rights and obligations of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR shall be the same as if the termination had been issued pursuant to Section 12.5.

12.4 Where the CONTRACTOR'S services have been so terminated by the CITY said termination shall not affect any rights of the CITY against the CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys by the CITY due the CONTRACTOR will not

release the CONTRACTOR from liability.

**12.5** Upon seven (7) days written notice to the CONTRACTOR, the CITY may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, elect to terminate the Agreement. In such case, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all Work executed and accepted by the CITY as of the date of the termination. No payment shall be made for profit for Work which has not been performed.

## Removal of Equipment:

12.6 In the case of termination of this Contract before completion for any cause whatever, the CONTRACTOR, if notified to do so by the CITY, shall promptly remove any part or all of his equipment and supplies from the property of the CITY. Should the CONTRACTOR not remove such equipment and supplies, the CITY shall have the right to remove them at the expense of the CONTRACTOR. Equipment and supplies shall not be construed to include such items for which the CONTRACTOR has been paid in whole or in part.

## **Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate:**

12.7 If, through no act or fault of the CONTRACTOR, the Work is suspended for a period of more than ninety (90) days by the CITY or under an order of court of other public authority, or the CONTRACTOR fails to act on any Application for Payment within thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the CITY fails to pay the CONTRACTOR any sum approved by the CITY, within thirty (30) calendar days of its approval, and presentation, then the CONTRACTOR may, upon twenty (20) calendar days written notice to the CITY, terminate the Agreement. The CITY may remedy the delay or neglect within the twenty (20) calendar days time frame. If timely remedied by the CITY the Contract shall not be considered terminated. In lieu of terminating the Agreement, if the CITY has failed to act on an Application for Payment or the CITY has failed to make any payment as aforesaid, the CONTRACTOR may upon ten (10) calendar days notice to the CITY and the CONTRACTOR stop the Work until they have been paid all amounts then due. If the CONTRACTOR stops neither by default nor by non-payment from the CITY, the CONTRACTOR will be responsible for 100% of the difference between the total of his/her Bid and the second lowest Bid.

# **ARTICLE 13- CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE**

- 13.1 CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to CITY all Work shall be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective.
- 13.2 CONTRACTOR'S obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of CONTRACTOR'S obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
  - 13.2.1 Observations by CITY or CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, based on the recommendation of the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER;

- 13.2.2 Payment by CITY of any progress or final payment;
- 13.2.3 The issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion, certificate of Final Completion, or any payment related thereto by CITY;
- 13.2.4 Use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by CITY;
- 13.2.5 Any acceptance by CITY or any failure to do so;
- 13.2.6 Any review and approval of a Submittal or the issuance of a notice of acceptability by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE;
- 13.2.7 Any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
- 13.2.8 Any correction of defective Work by CITY.

# 13.3 Access to Work:

The CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, ARCHITECT or ENGINEER and other representatives of CITY, testing agencies and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests shall have access to the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspecting and testing. CONTRACTOR shall provide proper and safe conditions for such access.

# 13.4 <u>Tests and Inspection</u>:

- 13.4.1 CONTRACTOR shall give CITY timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests, observations or approvals. Inspections, tests or observations by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, CITY or its agents may be performed at its discretion to provide information to the CITY on the progress of the Construction. However such information is not intended to fulfill the CONTRACTOR'S obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 13.4.2 CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish CITY the required certificates of inspection, testing or approval for all materials, equipment or the Work or any part thereof unless otherwise specified herein.

#### **13.5** Uncovering the Work:

If any Construction that is to be inspected, tested or approved is covered without written concurrence of CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, it must, if requested by CITY or the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, be uncovered for observation. Such uncovering shall be at CONTRACTOR'S expense and will exclude the right to an increase in the Contract Price or Contract Time unless CONTRACTOR has given CITY or the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE timely written notice of CONTRACTOR'S intention to cover such Construction and CITY or the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

13.5.1 If CITY considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE or the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, or inspected or tested by others, CONTRACTOR, at CITY'S request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or testing as CITY may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment. If it is found that such Work is defective, CONTRACTOR shall bear all the expenses of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory reconstruction, including compensation for additional professional services and any additional expenses experienced by the CITY due to delays to others performing additional work, other contractual obligations, and CITY shall be entitled to issue an appropriate deductive Change Order. CONTRACTOR shall further bear the responsibility for maintaining the schedule and will not be allowed an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time due to the uncovering. If, however, such Construction is not found to be defective, and Section 00700.8.5 is not applicable, CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction if it makes a claim therefore as provided in the Contract Documents.

# 13.6 <u>CITY May Stop the Work:</u>

If the Work is defective, or CONTRACTOR fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to furnish or perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, CITY may order CONTRACTOR to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such failure has been eliminated; however, this right of CITY to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of CITY to exercise this right for the benefit of CONTRACTOR or any other party. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an increase in Contract Price or the Contract Time or both as a result of the stopping of Work under this section.

# 13.7 <u>Correction or Removal of Defective Work:</u>

If required by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, with the recommendation of the ARCHITECT and/or ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as directed, either correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, upon the recommendation of the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective Work. CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such correction or removal (including but not limited to fees and charges of the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, attorneys and other professionals) made necessary thereby.

# **13.8** One Year Correction Period:

Without prejudice to any other right of the City, if within one (1) year after the date of final completion or within any designated manufacturer's warranty, whichever is greater, or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by laws or regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, CONTRACTOR shall promptly, without cost to CITY and in accordance with CITY'S written instructions, either correct such defective Work, or, if it has been rejected by CITY or the CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE, based on the recommendation of the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective Work. If CONTRACTOR does not promptly

comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, CITY may have the defective Work corrected or the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all of the CITY'S direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal and replacement (including but not limited to fees and charges of the ARCHITECT or ENGINEER) will be reimbursed by CONTRACTOR. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications or by written amendment.

13.9 CITY shall reserve and retain all of its rights and remedies at law and equity against CONTRACTOR and its surety for damages and for corrections of any and all latent defects.

# **13.10** Extended Warranty Period Due to Defective Construction:

Any defective Construction that is either corrected or rejected and replaced will be warranted and guaranteed for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of such correction or removal and replacement, even if it had previously been corrected or replaced, in accordance with the provisions of this Article 12. If within such extended Warranty Period, the Work is once again found to be defective, CITY shall be entitled to all of CITY'S rights and remedies under this Article.

## **ARTICLE 14 – MISCELLANEOUS**

- 14.1 Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice it shall be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to them who gives the notice.
- 14.2 The Contract Documents shall remain the property of the CITY. The CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR shall have the right to keep one record set of the Contract Documents upon completion of the Project.
- 14.3 The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions, Special Conditions and Supplemental Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder, and, in particular but without limitation, the warranties, guarantees and obligations imposed upon CONTRACTOR and those in the Special Conditions and the rights and remedies available to the CITY and there under, shall be in addition to, and shall not be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available by law, by special guarantee or by other provisions of the Contract Documents.
- 14.4 Should the CITY or the CONTRACTOR suffer injury or damage to its person or property because of any error, omission, or act of the other or of any of their employees or agents or others for whose acts they are legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to the other party within a reasonable time of the first observance of such in-jury or damage.

## ARTICLE 15 – WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

15.1 The CITY and the CONTRACTOR knowingly, irrevocably voluntarily and intentionally waive any right either may have to a trial by jury in State or Federal Court proceedings in respect to any action, proceeding, lawsuit or counterclaim based upon the Contract Documents or the performance of the Work thereunder.

# ARTICLE 16 - ATTORNEYS FEES/JURISDICITON/VENUE/GOVERNING LAW

- **16.1** The Contract shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the law of the State of Florida.
- **16.2** The parties submit to the jurisdiction of any Florida State or federal court in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the Contract. Venue of any action to enforce the Contract shall be in Dade County, Florida.
- **16.3** If either the CITY or the CONTRACTOR is required to enforce the terms of the Contract by court proceedings, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all such costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, court costs, and reasonable attorney's fees.

#### ARTICLE 17 – PROJECT RECORDS

17.1 The CITY shall have right to inspect and copy during regular business hours at CITY'S expense, the books and records and accounts of CONTRACTOR which relate in any way to the Project, and to any claim for additional compensation made by CONTRACTOR, and to conduct an audit of the financial and accounting records of CONTRACTOR which relate to the Project. CONTRACTOR shall retain and make available to CITY all such books and records and accounts, financial or otherwise, which relate to the Project and to any claim for a period of three (3) years following final completion of the Project. During the Project and the three (3) year period following final completion of the Project, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY access to its books and records upon five (5) days written notice.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – SEVERABILITY**

**18.1** If any provision of the Contract or the application thereof to any person or situation shall to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Contract, and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than those as to which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect, and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 19 – INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

19.1 The CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR under the Contract. Services provided by the CONTRACTOR shall be by employees of the CONTRACTOR and subject to supervision by the CONTRACTOR, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the CITY. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures, applicable to services rendered under the Contract shall

be those of the CONTRACTOR.

#### <u>ARTICLE 20 – TRENCH SAFETY ACT</u>

**20.1** The purpose and intention of the State of Florida "Trench Safety Act" is to provide for increased worker safety by requiring compliance with sufficient standards for trench safety when the excavation is in excess of five (5) feet deep.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 00810 – SPECIAL CONDITIONS**

#### 8.1 Permit/Utilities:

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain all permits necessary to conduct this project. The cost of all permits should be included on the bid proposal. The CONTRACTOR is responsible of obtaining NPDES Stormwater permit coverage through the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Construction Generic Permit (CGP). Instructions to request and obtain CGP а can be found http://www.dep.state.fl.us/water/stormwater/npdes/docs/cgp.pdf. CONTRACTOR should submit the Notice of Intent (NOI) with the appropriate processing fees to the NPDES Stormwater Notices Center. CONTRACTOR must apply for permit coverage at least two days before construction begins. In addition, the CONTRACTOR shall clear utilities prior to conducting any work at each project site.

#### 8.2 Hours of Work:

Contractor will perform work Monday through Friday, excluding City holidays, from 7:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. unless prior written approval is received from The City. The CONTRACTOR must

comply with the CITY's Noise Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2006-23.

## 8.3 Disputes:

If any dispute concerning a question of fact arises under the Contract, other than termination for default or convenience, the CONTRACTOR and the CITY's responsible department for the administration of the Contract shall make good faith effort to resolve the dispute. If the dispute cannot be resolved by agreement, then the department with the advice of the City Attorney shall resolve the dispute and send a written copy of its decision to the CONTRACTOR, which shall be binding on both parties.

## 8.4 Default Provisions:

In case of default by the BIDDER or CONTRACTOR, the CITY procure the articles or services from other sources and hold the BIDDER or CONTRACTOR responsible for any excess costs occasioned or incurred thereby.

# 8.5 Assignment:

The CONTRACTOR shall not transfer or assign the performance required by this Bid without prior written consent of the City Manager. Any award issued pursuant to the Invitation to Bid and monies which may be due hereunder are not assignable except with prior written approval of the City Manager. Further, in the event that the majority ownership or control of the CONTRACTOR changes hands subsequent to the award of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the CITY in writing of such change in ownership or control at least thirty (30) days prior to such change and the CITY shall have the right to terminate the Contract upon sixty (60) days written notice, at the CITY's sole discretion.

# 8.6 Secondary/Other Vendors:

The CITY reserves the right in the event the primary vendor cannot provide an item(s) or service(s) in a timely manner as requested, to seek other sources without violating the intent of the Contract.

## 8.7 Employees:

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the appearance of all working personnel assigned to the project (clean and appropriately dressed at all times). Personnel must be able to supply proper identification at all times.

All employees of the CONTRACTOR shall be considered to be at all times the sole employees of the CONTRACTOR, under the CONTRACTOR's sole direction, and not an employee or agent of the City of Doral. The CONTRACTOR shall supply competent, suitably qualified and capable employees and the CITY may require the CONTRACTOR to remove any employee it deems careless, incompetent, insubordinate or otherwise objectionable and whose presence on CITY property is not in the best interest of the CITY. The CITY shall not have any duty to implement or enforce such requirements.

Each employee of the CONTRACTOR shall be a citizen of the United States or an alien who has been lawfully admitted for permanent residence as evidenced by an Alien Registration Receipt Card. The CONTRACTOR agrees not to employ any person undergoing sentence of

imprisonment except as provided by Public Law 89-176, September 10, 1965, (18 USC4082)(c)(2).

The "On Duty" supervisor must be able to adequately communicate with the City's representatives.

#### 8.8 Subcontractors, Suppliers and Others:

Prior to the commencement of any work, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish, in writing to the CITY, the names of persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The CITY shall notify the CONTRACTOR, in writing, of any proposed person or entity to which CITY has an objection. The CONTRACTOR shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to which the CITY has made an objection. The CONTRACTOR shall not change a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the CITY makes objection to the change.

The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to CITY for all acts and omissions of the CONTRACTOR, its employees, Sub-Contractors, suppliers, other persons directly or indirectly employed by its Sub-Contractors or suppliers, persons for whose acts any of them may be liable and any other persons or organizations performing or furnishing supplies under a direct or indirect Contract with the CONTRACTOR. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between CITY and any such Sub-Contractor, supplier or other person or organization, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of CITY to pay or to cause the payment of any money due any Sub-Contractor, supplier, employee or agent except as may otherwise be required by law.

All Work performed for the CONTRACTOR by a Sub-Contractor will be pursuant to an appropriate agreement between the CONTRACTOR and the Sub-Contractor which specifically binds the Sub-Contractor to all applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of the CITY.

#### 8.9 Protection:

All work in fulfillment of this project shall be performed on CITY property or public right- ofway. No permission will be given to trespass on adjoining property.

If property (public or private) is damaged during construction or is removed for the convenience of the work, it shall be repaired or replaced at the expense of the CONTRACTOR in a manner acceptable to the City of Doral prior to the final acceptance of the work. Such property shall include but not be limited to: pavement, sidewalks, curbs, driveways, walls, fences, footings, building façade, underground utilities, sod, shrubs, water sprinklers, signs, and trees.

The CONTRACTOR shall notify the Public Works Department in writing of the site having preexisting damage to sidewalks, curbs, facade, adjacent improvements, etc., before beginning work. Failure to do so shall obligate the CONTRACTOR to make repairs per above paragraph.

The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for pedestrian and vehicular safety and

control within the work site and shall provide the necessary warning devices, signage, barricades and ground personnel needed to give safety, protection, and warning to persons and vehicular traffic within the area. All safety devices must have suitable and sufficient lighting for the prevention of accidents.

The CONTRACTOR shall protect existing catch basins from sediment and debris with filter fabric while work is in progress. Filter fabric shall be removed after completion of work. Filter fabric must be cleaned periodically to avoid excessive accumulation of sediment and debris. Extreme care shall be taken when removing filter fabric to avoid sediments and debris from entering catch basin.

## 8.10 Security:

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for project security. The CONTRACTOR shall protect and secure the site, materials, and equipment from theft and damage, by whatever means deems effective, at the CONTRACTOR's cost.

Work site(s) must be protected properly in accordance with all Federal, State, County and Municipal laws and ordinances, at the end of each work day and weekends.

#### **8.11** Temporary Interruption:

Access to adjacent properties shall be maintained at all times. Metal plates shall be available on site at all times during duration of the project for this purpose. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the Public Works Director whenever it is necessary to temporarily interrupt access to adjacent properties. The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate or notify the property Owner, tenant, or their designee prior to the access interruption and again immediately before the access is resumed. Before disconnecting any underground or overhead utilities, the CONTRACTOR shall make similar arrangements for their disconnection with the utility owner and with the property Owner, tenant or their designee. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any damage caused by the CONTRACTOR to such utilities, and shall restore them to service promptly as soon as the Work interruption has ended.

### 8.12 Pricing:

Prices should be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bid form. In case of a discrepancy, the CITY reserves the right to make the final determination at the lowest net cost to the CITY.

#### 8.13 Delivery:

All items shall be delivered "Freight On Board" (F.O.B.) destination (i.e. at a specific City of Doral address), and delivery costs and charges (if any) shall be included in the Bid Price. Exceptions shall be noted.

## 8.14 Payments:

Payment will be made after commodities/services have been received, accepted, and properly invoiced as indicated in the contract and/or purchase order. Invoices must bear the purchase order number.

#### **8.15** Non-Conformance to Contract:

The CITY may withhold acceptance of, or reject items which are found upon examination, not to meet the specification requirements. Upon written notification of rejections, items shall be removed within five (5) calendar days by the vendor at their own expense and redelivered at their expense. Rejected goods left longer than thirty (3) calendar days will be regarded as abandoned and the CITY shall have the right to dispose of them as its own property. Rejection for non-conformance or failure to meet delivery schedules may result in the CONTRACTOR being found in default.

#### 8.16 Materials:

The CONTRACTOR warrants that all materials and equipment shall be of good quality and new, unless otherwise provided in the specifications and that the work will be free from defects whether patent or latent in nature. All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable supplier except as otherwise provided in the specifications.

# 8.17 Storage of Materials:

The CONTRACTOR shall store materials, at his expense, in areas approved by the CITY. The CONTRACTOR, at their own expense, shall maintain these areas in a clean, orderly condition so as not to cause a nuisance in the area. The CONTRACTOR shall restore the storage area to its original or better condition, with all its appurtenances, in kind, to the satisfaction of the CITY, at the CONTRACTOR's discretion, if the CONTRACTOR chooses to stage material outside of the designated area, with prior approval from the CITY.

## 8.18 Quality Control:

Field Observations - Provide twenty-four (24) hour notification to the Architect/Engineer for all specified field observations, unless otherwise noted.

<u>Inspection</u> – Periodically the City may inspect the project for the purpose of assuring compliance with the specifications.

<u>Dust Control</u> – Contractor shall control dust by watering and sweeping at end of each work day or as directed by City Engineer. Dust control must meet City's satisfaction or the CITY will control dust by whatever means deem necessary at the CONTRACTOR'S expense.

#### 8.19 On-Site Survey/As-Built:

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for survey work required for establishing proper layout, elevations and grades as noted on the plans. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY with three (3) sets of certified as-built plans and a CD containing PDF copy of the As-Built drawings as well as the CAD files, at no additional cost to the CITY.

#### 8.20 Water Usage:

All City potable water used during the project shall be metered through a hydrant meter or meters obtained from the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department at the CONTRACTOR's expense.

#### 8.21 Salvageable Material:

All salvageable material and/or equipment removed from the existing construction for which specific use, relocation or other disposal is not specifically noted on the Drawings or otherwise specified, will remain the property of the CITY and be turned over to the CITY. All material and/or equipment not in salvageable condition as determined by the CITY Representative must be disposed of by the CONTRACTOR. The actual storage site for salvageable material will be designated by the CITY.

## **8.22** Disposal of Excavated Material and Debris:

All excess excavated material and debris not required for backfill (unless otherwise noted), including broken pipe, sidewalks, curbs and other concrete items, together with all roots, boards and other debris are to be disposed of by the CONTRACTOR at an appropriate legal site, at no additional cost to the CITY.

The CONTRACTOR must at all times during the performance of the project keep the work site free and clear of all waste and debris to the CITY's satisfaction. All sand, grit, solids and other material, accumulated waste or surplus materials shall be removed at the end of each work day.

The CONTRACTOR will have not more than 48-hour notice to clear work site of rubbish, debris and other work site materials and to restore or replace displaced or damaged property, if the CONTRACTOR fails to comply, the CITY may employ labor or equipment as it deems necessary to clear the site at the CONTRACTORS's expense.

#### 8.23 Equipment:

All construction equipment necessary and required for construction of this project shall be on the construction site, in excellent working condition, before construction is permitted to start. Equipment leaking oil shall not be allowed on site. The CONTRACTOR shall provide such tamping tools and equipment as are necessary for the proper compaction of the backfill material.

## 8.24 Density Testing:

Density tests shall be taken by an independent testing laboratory certified by the State of Florida and approved by the designated City representative and shall be paid for by Contractor, at no additional cost to the City. A compaction test, for both the base and subgrade, shall be performed for every section of new pavement and at least one (1) test for every 250 square yards of new pavement. In addition, density testing shall be performed for the installation of each lift or layer of sub grade material and limerock base at a frequency of one test per 50 feet of trench, or adjacent to newly installed inlets at the discretion of the City representative.

Compaction test reports of sub-grade and base rock shall be submitted for approval to the designated City representative prior to installation of final asphaltic wearing surface.

#### **8.25** Laboratory Tests:

Except as otherwise provided, sampling and testing of all materials, and the laboratory

methods and testing equipment required under these specifications shall be in accordance with the latest standards of the American Society for Testing Materials.

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish the required samples for testing without charge. The CONTRACTOR shall provide at least 24 hour notice when requesting testing to be performed. In locations where corings are taken by the approved testing lab, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for plugging these core holes.

All material tests will be made by an independent testing laboratory that may be selected by the CITY. Excluding Density Testing, where tests indicate that materials are in accordance with specified requirements, the CITY shall bear the testing cost. When tests reveal that conditions or materials do not comply with the specifications, the cost of such tests shall be assessed against the CONTRACTOR.

#### 8.26 Notification to Residents:

Contractor shall notify residents directly impacted by the project (including MOT), in writing, 72 hours prior to performing any work. Contractor shall provide a letter to each resident along the working area. CITY will provide notification that will include type of work to be performed; date work will begin and estimated completion date. In the event Contractor changes schedule or duration of work, Contractor must notify resident, in writing, of such changes.

END OF SECTION

**GENERAL FORMS** 

# STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE

ITB No. 2016-23

N/A.

If you are not proposing on this service/commodity, please complete and return this form to: City of Doral – City Manager's Office 8401 NW 53<sup>rd</sup> Terrace Doral, FL 33166. Failure to respond may result in deletion of your firm's name from the qualified vendor list for the City of Doral.

COMPLANY NAN	1E:
ADDRESS:	
TELEPONE:	
SIGNATURE:	
DATE:	
We, the undersig	ned have declined to submit a proposal on the above because of the following reasons
or ns 	ecifications/Scope of Work too "tight", i.e., geared toward brand or manufacturer ally (explain below). Sufficient time to respond. e do not offer this product, service or an equivalent. or schedule would not permit us to perform. hable to meet bond requirements. ecifications unclear (explain below). her (specify below).
REMARKS:	

For bidders submitting proposals for this opportunity, you may write "N/A" on this form.

# GENERAL INFORMATION WORKSHEET ITB No. 2016-23

ORGANIZATION/AGANCY/FIRM/NAME: Maggolc Ivc.
ORGANIZATION/AGANCY/FIRM/NAME: Maggolc Ive.  DATE ORGANIZATION WAS FORMED/INCORPORATED: June 14, 2005
FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER: 20-3345775
MAILING ADDRESS: 11020 SW 55 St. Miami, FL 3316
PHONE NUMBER: 786-291-2949
ORGANIZATION EMAIL ADDRESS: maggalc e yahoo. com
ORGANIZATION WEBISTE ADDRESS:
CONTACT PERSON & TITLE: Mario Gow Zalez / President
CONTACT PERSON & TITLE: Mario Gow Zalez President  CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS: Maggole Eyahoo. PHONE No: 786-291-294
INDIVIDUAL(S) AUTHORIZED TO MAKE REPRESENTATION FOR THE CONTRACTOR:
Mario Gouraler President 786-291-294
(First, Last Name) (Title) (Contact Phone Num.)
(First, Last Name) (Title) (Contact Phone Num.)
(First, Last Name) (Title) (Contact Phone Num.)
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
CONTACT'S SIGNATURE: DATE: 9/16/16

## BUSINESS ENTITY AFFIDAVIT (VENDOR/BIDDER DISCLOSURE)

ITB No. 2016-23

Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8

			rater mipie.		. Jub-Dusi	11111-0				
1, <u>Ma</u>	no	Go	ural	er		, being	first d	uly sworr	n stat	e:
The full legal nar										
with the City of I									, unig i	Dusilless
				ii esses u	re not acc	cptabl	ic, as i	Ollows.		
20-3	345	775	5		_					
Federal Employer Iden	tification Num	ber (If none, :	Social Security N	lumber)						_
Mag	gol	c I	Twe,							
Name of Entity, Individ	lual, Partners,	or Corporatio	n							_
	<u>_</u> _									_
Doing Business as (If sa			<b>A</b>		,					
11020	5W	55	5.7.	Mi	ami		FL	3	3/	65
Street Address		_	Suite		City		State	Zip Code		_
	tact or bus	iness tran	saction is w							
			or more of							
			full legal na							
	eneficiary.		names and							
·	•									
Full Legal Name		A	ddress					Ownersh	nin	
						Λ		O WITCH STI	<u>15</u>	
yario (	roura	ler 1	1020 ,	SW	55 E	<i>D</i> .		100	0	%
Yario G			Miam	i Fl	3310	6.5				_/0
			3 41 4	/ '	70			2		%
					-					_/0
										%
										_/0

2. The full legal names and business address of any other individual (other than subcontractors, material men, suppliers, laborers, or lenders) who have, or will have, any interest (legal,

equitable, beneficial or otherwise) in the contract or business transaction with the City are as follows (Post Office addresses are not acceptable):

Nove	
Signature of Afflant	9/15/16 Date
Mario Gouraler Printed Name of Affiant	
Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15 <sup>TH</sup> day of	September, 2016.
Personally known to me, or  Personally identification:	
(Type of Identification Produced)	
☐ Did take an oath, or	
☐ Did NOT take an oath,	
Notary Public - State of Florida	
My Commission Expires 67-06-2020	
Dail Si	
(Notary Signature)	
(Drinted toward on stemand constitution of the toward	. 11 . 3

(Printed, typed, or stamped commission name of notary public)

## AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) DISABILITY NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

ITB No. 2016-23

Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin H-8

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

This sworn statement is submitted to the City of Doral, Florida
By: Mano Gonzalez President
(Print individual's name and title)
For: Maggola INC.
(Print name of entity submitting sworn statement)
Whose business address is: 11000 SW 55 St. Miami, Fl 33165
And (if applicable) its Federal Employer Number (FEIN) is: 20-33 45 7+5
(If the entity has no FEIN, include Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn statement:
I. being duly first sworn state:

That the above named firm, corporation or organization is in compliance with and agreed to continue to comply with, and assure that any subcontractor, or third party proposer under this project complies with all applicable requirements of the laws listed below including, but not limited to, those provisions pertaining to employment, provision of programs and services, transportation, communications, access to facilities, renovations, and new construction.

The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), Pub. L. 101-336, 104 Stat 327, 42 USC 1210112213 and 47 USC Sections 225 and 661 including Title I, Employment; Title II, Public Services; Title III, Public Accommodations and Services Operated by Private entities; Title IV, Telecommunications; and Title V, Miscellaneous Provisions.

The Florida Americans with Disabilities Accessibility Implementation Act of 1993, Section 553.501 553.513, Florida Statutes:

The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 229 USC Section 794; The Federal Transit Act, as amended 49 USC Section 1612;

The Fair Housing Act as amended 42 USC Section 3601-3631.
SIGNATURE
Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15 day of September, 20 16.
Personally known to me, or
☐ Personally identification:
(Type of Identification Produced)
Did take an oath, or
☐ Did NOT take an oath,
Notary Public - State of Florida
My Commission Expires <u>67-06-2020</u>
DANIEL SANCHEZ Commission # GG 8929 My Commission Expires 07-06-2020
(Notary Signature)  Sonded Through American Association of Notaries

(Printed, typed, or stamped commission name of notary public)

#### PROPOSER'S CERTIFICATION

ITB No. 2016-23

I have carefully examined the Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, General and/or Special Conditions, Vendor's Notes, Specifications, proposed agreement and any other documents accompanying or made a part of this Invitation to Bid.

I hereby propose to furnish the goods or services specified in the Invitation to Bid. I agree that my proposal will remain firm for a period of 365 days in order to allow the City adequate time to evaluate the proposals.

I certify that all information contained in this proposal is truthful to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further certify that I am duly authorized to submit this proposal on behalf of the firm as its act and deed and that the firm is ready, willing and able to perform if awarded the contract.

I further certify, under oath, that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement, connection, discussion, or collusion with any other person, firm or corporation submitting a proposal for the same product or service; no officer, employee or agent of the City of Doral or any other proposer is interested in said proposal; and that the undersigned executed this Proposer's Certification with full knowledge and understanding of the matters therein contained and was duly authorized to do so.

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crimes may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a proposer, supplier, sub- proposer, or consultant under a contract with a public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Sec. 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Maggola Iva	
Name of Business	
By:	Sworn to and subscribed before me this
Signature Mario Gonzalez Pr	esident
Name and Title, Typed or Printed 11000 SW 55 SD.	Diefsi
Mailing Address Wiami, FL 33165	Notary Public State of Florida
City, State and Zip Code 786-291-2949	67-06-2020 DANIEL SANCH Commission # GG 8
Telephone Number	My Commission Expires 07-

(Acknowledgement of Addendums: Issued Addendums must be signed and submitted with proposal)

## ITB SIGNATURE PAGE FOR SOLE PROPRIETOR OR PARTNERSHIP

N/A

ITB No. 2016-23

The full names and residences of person, partr principals are as follows:	ners or firms interested in the foregoing ITB, as
Witness: (Seal)	Bidder:
Witness Signature	Firm Name
Witness Name	Signature
	Print Name
	Title (Sole Proprietor or Partner)
	Post Office Address:
County in which fictitious name is registered.	
	Telephone Num.

## ITB No. 2016-23

The officers of the corporation are as follows:

		<u>Name</u>		<u>Address</u>			
President	Mario	Gowzalez	1102	5W5	5 st.	Hia	mi f
Vice-President							
Secretary	Olga	Leon Gonzalez	11000	sw55	51. N	lian	i F
Treasurer	Mario	GONZalez		11		4	<i>3</i> 3/( -
Registered Agen	t						_
principals, are as	follows:	f stockholders, person	s, or firms in	terested in t	he foregoi	ng ITB	, as
Mario G 11020 su Miami, s	owraler 55 St. Fl 33165						
Post Office Addre			Diddo				
		5 A	Bidder	1990	1	Die	_
11020 g	=, Fl	33165	Corporate	Name		-	
s this corporation Ye f no, give address	sNo		Attest: Secretar	Y A	?. =oN		



### CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 6/24/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVEDACES		CERTIFICATE AU IMPERIMENTAL A.		
Miami	FL	33165	INSURER F :	
			INSURER E: Federal Insurance Company	
11020 SW 55 Street			INSURER D BusinessFirst Insurance Co	).
Maggolc, Inc.			INSURER C: Torus National Insurance (	Company
			INSURER B Mapfre Insurance Co. of F	
INSURED				
Miami	FL	33176	INSURER A: Colony Insurance Company	
Suite 104			INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE	NAIC #
9570 SW 107 Avenue			E-MAIL ADDRESS: amanda@easterninsurance.ne	t
Eastern Insurance Gro	up,	Inc.	PHONE (A/C, No. Ext): (305) 595-3323	FAX (A/C, No): (305) 595-7135
PRODUCER			CONTACT Amanda Nogues	

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES A MATE SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN HERDINGED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

LE	EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.							
INSF		TYPE OF INSURANCE		SUBR WVD	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMITS
	X	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY						EACH OCCURRENCE \$ 1,000,00
A	$\vdash$	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR						DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) \$ 100,00
ı	_		X		103GL0006301-01	9/22/2015	9/22/2016	MED EXP (Any one person) \$ 5,00
1	$\vdash$							PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$ 1,000,00
	_	I'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:		!				GENERAL AGGREGATE \$ 2,000,00
	X	POLICY PRO- JECT LOC						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$ 2,000,000
	$\sqcup$	OTHER:	<u> </u>					\$
	$\vdash$	OMOBILE LIABILITY						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT \$ 1,000,000
В	X	ANY AUTO ALL OWNED SCHEDULED						BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$
	$\square$	AUTOS AUTOS	ж		4150130008652	7/17/2016	7/17/2017	BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$
	X	HIRED AUTOS X AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident) \$
<u> </u>								Hired Auto \$ 1,000,000
		UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE \$ 3,000,000
C	X	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE						AGGREGATE \$ 3,000,000
<u> </u>	_	DED RETENTION\$	X		86222K151ALI	9/22/2015	9/22/2016	\$
		KERS COMPENSATION EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N						X PER OTH- STATUTE ER
_		PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE	N/A					E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 100,000
D	D (Mandatory in NH)				521-11888	9/22/2015	9/22/2016	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 100,000
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below			$\rightarrow$				E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$ 500,000
E	E Rented/Leased Equipment				45468147	11/2/2015	11/2/2016	\$250,000
	Contractor's Equipment				45468147	11/2/2015	11/2/2016	\$254,016

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) Sidewalk, Paving, Drainage

Project: ITB # 2016-04 CIty of Doral Stormwater Improvements: Sub-Basin F-1.

City of Doral is listed as additional insured with respect to Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability, and Excess Liability as required per written contract. Coverage as an additional insured is provided if required by written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER	CANCELLATION
City of Doral 8401 NW 53 Terrace Doral, FL 33166	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
	David Lopez/DAVID

# **Local Business Tax Receipt**

Miami-Dade County, State of Florida

5684064

BUSINESS NAME/LOCATION

**MAGGOLC INC** 11020 SW 55 ST **MIAMI FL 33165** 

RECEIPT NO. RENEWAL 5928487

**EXPIRES SEPTEMBER 30, 2017** 

Must be displayed at place of business **Pursuant to County Code** Chapter 8A - Art. 9 & 10

OWNER MAGGOLC INC

Worker(s)

SEC. TYPE OF BUSINESS 196 SPECIALTY ENGINEERING CONTRACT BY TAX COLLECTOR

PAYMENT RECEIVED

\$75.00 07/14/2016 CREDITCARD-16-040505

This Local Business Tax Receipt only confirms payment of the Local Business Tax. The Receipt is not a license, permit, or a certification of the holder's qualifications, to do business. Holder must comply with any governmental or nongevernmental regulatory laws and requirements which apply to the business.

The RECEIPT NO. above must be displayed on all commercial vehicles — Miami-Dade Code Sec 8a-276.

For more information, visit <u>www.miamidade.gov/taxcollector</u>



Construction Trades Qualifying Board BUSINESS CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY

E251302

**MAGGOLC INC** 

D.B.A.:

GONZALEZ MARIO

Is certified under the provisions of Chapter 10 of Miami-Dade County



### STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD 2601 BLAIR STONE ROAD TALLAHASSEE FL 32399-0783

(850) 487-1395

GONZALEZ, MARIO H MAGGOLC INC **11020 SW 55TH STREET** MIAMI FL 33165

Congratulations! With this license you become one of the nearly one million Floridians licensed by the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. Our professionals and businesses range from architects to yacht brokers, from boxers to barbeque restaurants, and they keep Florida's economy strong.

Every day we work to improve the way we do business in order to serve you better. For information about our services, please log onto www.myfloridalicense.com. There you can find more information about our divisions and the regulations that impact you, subscribe to department newsletters and learn more about the Department's initiatives.

Our mission at the Department is: License Efficiently, Regulate Fairly. We constantly strive to serve you better so that you can serve your customers. Thank you for doing business in Florida, and congratulations on your new license!



**DETACH HERE** 

RICK SCOTT, GOVERNOR

KEN LAWSON, SECRETARY

#### STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

LICENSE NUMBER

CUC1224888

The UNDERGROUND UTILITY & EXCAVATION CO Named below IS CERTIFIED Under the provisions of Chapter 489 FS.

Expiration date: AUG 31, 2018

GONZALEZ, MARIO H MAGGOLC INC

MIAMI FL 33165

11020 SW 55TH STREET







## STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD 1940 NORTH MONROE STREET TALLAHASSEE FL 32399-0783

(850) 487-1395

GONZALEZ, MARIO H MAGGOLC INC 11020 SW 55TH STREET MIAMI FL 33165

Congratulations! With this license you become one of the nearly one million Floridians licensed by the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. Our professionals and businesses range from architects to yacht brokers, from boxers to barbeque restaurants, and they keep Florida's economy strong.

Every day we work to improve the way we do business in order to serve you better. For information about our services, please log onto www.myfloridalicense.com. There you can find more information about our divisions and the regulations that impact you, subscribe to department newsletters and learn more about the Department's initiatives.

Our mission at the Department is: License Efficiently, Regulate Fairly. We constantly strive to serve you better so that you can serve your customers. Thank you for doing business in Florida, and congratulations on your new license!



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND
PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

RG291103844

18SUED: 08/02/2015

REGISTERED GENERAL CONTRACTOR
GONZALEZ, MARIO H
MAGGOLC INC
(INDIVIDUAL MUST MEET ALL LOCAL
LICENSING REQUIREMENTS PRIOR
TO CONTRACTING IN ANY AREA)

HAS REGISTERED under the provisions of Ch.489 FS. Expiration date AUG 31, 2017 L1508020001221

**DETACH HERE** 

RICK SCOTT, GOVERNOR

KEN LAWSON, SECRETARY

#### STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

LICENSE NUMBER

RG291103844

The GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Named below HAS REGISTERED Under the provisions of Chapter 489 FS.

Expiration date: AUG 31, 2017

(INDIVIDUAL MUST MEET ALL LOCAL LICENSING REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO CONTRACTING IN ANY AREA)

GONZALEZ, MARIO H MAGGOLC INC 11020 SW 55TH STREET MIAMI FL 33165



ISSUED: 08/02/2015

**DISPLAY AS REQUIRED BY LAW** 

SEQ# L1508020001221





11020 SW 55 ST., MIAMI, FL 33165 PHONE: 786-291-2949 FAX: 786-472-8831

maggolc@yahoo.com

### CONTRACTS PERFORMED BY MAGGOLC INC.

- 1-Drainage Improvement for NW 22 CT from NW 107 ST to NW 112 ST, (\$318,000) (Miami-Dade County Public Works Dept., Completed Dec. 2007). (Alberto Estevez 786-256 2627). (esteva@miamidade.gov)
- 2-Various Park Parking Lot Re-striping & Wheel Stop Replace. (\$24,500) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept. Completed March 2008). (305-596 4460)
- 3-Seal Coat and Re-striping of Station 13/ Logistics Parking Area. (\$19,000) (Miami-Dade Fire Rescue Dept. Completed July 2008). (786-331 4529)
- 4-Norman and Jean Reach Park/Foul ball Netting. (\$25,000) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed June 2008). (305-596 4460)
- 5-Olympic Park Concrete Sidewalk Construction. (\$184,000) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed July 2008). (Dan Crawford 305-596 4460) (dc93@miamidade.gov)
- 6-Dolphin Archaelogical Site Concrete Sidewalk Construction., (\$114,084) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed July 2008). (Dan Crawford 305-596 4460) (dc93@miamidade.gov)
- 7-Countywide Repair of Existing Asphalt Pavement. (Milling & Resurfacing) (\$949,990) (Florida Department of Transportation, Dist. Six, Executed the year 2008 and renewed for to year 2009 and 2010, Completed June 2011). (Janice Corn 305-256 6359) (Janice.corn@dot.state.fl.us)
- 8-Countywide Intersections Improvement, Roadway and Drainage. (\$443,637) (Miami-Dade County Public Works Dept., Completed Dec. 2008). (Joaquin Rabassa 305-299 9822) (jra@miamidade.gov)
- 9-West Perrine Park Concrete Slabs, Sidewalks and Poured in Place. (\$34,000) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed January 2009). (305-596 4460)
- 10-West Little River Asphalt Driveways Phase IV-B. (\$68,000) (Miami-Dade County Office of Community and Economic Development, Completed January 2009). (Mario Berrios 786-469 2112) (mberr@miamidade.gov)
- 11-Brentwood Pool Park New Asphalt Walkways. (\$34,000) (City of Miami Gardens, Completed April 2009). (305-622 8000) (jallen@miamigardens-fl.gov)
- 12-Country Club of Miami Parcel 1169 & 1168-E New Asphalt Walkways. (\$178,000) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed July 2009). (Dan Crawford 305-596 4460) (dc93@miamidade.gov)
- 13-Country Club of Miami Grading, Sitework & Greens. (\$107,000) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed August 2009). (305-596 4460)
- 14-SR 907 (Alton Rd) at Allison Dr. for Drainage and Retention Improvements. (\$134,000) (FDOT, Completed December 2009) (Anthony Sabbag 305-256 6380) (anthony.sabbag@dot.state.fl.us)
- 15- West Little River Asphalt Driveways Phase IV-D. (\$35,000) (Miami-Dade County Office of Community and Economic Development, Completed December 2009). (Mario Berrios 786- 469 2112) (mberr@miamidade.gov)

- 16-District 2- Sidewalk Repair Project II (\$75,300) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed March 2010) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305-416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 17-Blue Road Roundabouts Re-Bid (\$145,000) (Public Works Dep. City of Coral Gables, Completed March 2010) ( 305-460 5018) (epino@coralgables.com)
- 18-Harbor Drive Lighting and Resurfacing Improvement (\$270,000) (Public Works Dep. Village of Key Biscayne April 2010) (786-255 6765) (anunez@keybiscayne.fl.gov)
- 19-District 1- Sidewalk Repair Project II (\$95,990) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed September 2010) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305-416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 20-Golden Shore Park Pavers Sidewalk (\$23,895.00) (Public Works Dep. City of Sunny Isles Beach, November 2010) ( 305-947 0606) (gbatista@sibfl.net)
- 21-AD Barnes Park Asphalt Walkways (\$86,615.00) (Miami-Dade Park and Recreation Dept., Completed December 2010) (305-755 7985) (rttolon@miamidade.gov)
- 22-Installation of Sidewalks and Ramps along NE 12 Ave (\$123,750.00) (Public Works Dep. City of North Miami, Completed December 2010) (Gerardo Hernandez 305-893 6511) (ghernandez@northmiamifl.gov)
- 23-Intersection Realignment SW 139 Terr & SW 140 Dr. and East Guava Street One Way Street Conversion (\$36,775) (Public Works Dep., Village of Palmetto Bay, Completed December 2010) (305-969 5011) (dcasals@palmettobay-fl.gov)
- 24-District #3 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements, (\$107,414) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed February 2011) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305 416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 25- District #1 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements, (\$155,523) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed May 2011) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305 416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 26- MIA Building 3050 Parking Lot Drainage & Asphalt Improvement (\$103,000) (Aviation Department Miami-Dade County, Completed May 2011) (Greg Tai 305-876 8444) (gtai@mikegconst.com)
- 27- MIA- NW 67 Ave & NW 36 Street Intersection Improvements (\$65,000), (concrete works) (Aviation Department Miami Dade County, Complete July 2011) (John Peterson 305-622 8000) (jpet@mikegconst.com)
- 28- District #4 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements, (\$149,397) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed October 2011) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305-416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 29- Tamiami Canal Miccosukee Linear Park, Tamiami Trail and SW 122 Ave. (\$87,703) (Miami Dade Park & Recreation Department, Completed October 2011) (Ruben Teurbe Tolon 786-586 8360) (rttolon@miamidade.gov)
- 30- SW 19 Terrace Roadway and Drainage Improvements (\$184,585) (City of Miami, Capital Improvements Department, Completed October 2011) (Maurice Hardie 786-229 5463) (mhardie@miamigov.com)
- 31- SR 909 (Alton Road) at West 52 Street Drainage Improvement (\$138,000) (Florida Department of Transportation, Completed December 2011) (Roland Rodriguez 305-345 0696) (rrodriguez@pinnaclecei.com)
- 32- Suncrest Drive & Moss Ranch Road Stormwater Improvements (\$ 110,000) (Village of Pinecrest, Public Works Dep., Completed December 2011) (Daniel Moretti 305-669 6916) (moretti@pinecrest-fl.gov)
- 33- Long Key State Park Roadway Improvements (\$149,230) (Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Completed February 2012) (Fred Hand 850-488 6322) (Fred.Hand@dep.state.fl.us)

- 34- District #2 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements, (\$105,303) (Public Works Dep. City of Miami, Completed February 2012) (Fabiola Dubuisson 305-416 1755 & 305-801 7816) (fdubuisson@miamigov.com)
- 35- **SW 64 Street Corridor Improvement, (\$60,000)** (Public Works Dep. City of South Miami, Completed February 2012) (Keith A. Ng 305-403 2072) (kng@southmiamifl.gov)
- 36- Long Key State Park Campground Entrance Modification (\$49,450) (Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Completed July 2012) (Fred Hand 850-488 6322) (Fred.Hand@dep.state.fl.us)
- 37- FDOT LAP Roadway Improvements Project (\$117,371) (Public Works Dep. City of Sweetwater, Completed July 2012) (Eric Gomez 305-553 5457) (egomez.egsc@att.net)
- 38- SR 94/SW 88 ST/ Kendall Dr. at SW 142 Ave (\$134,843) (Florida Department of Transportation, Completed October 2012) (Roland Rodriguez 305-345 0696) (rrodriguez@pinnaclecei.com)
- 39- Phase IV Drainage Improvement Project (\$143,830) (Village of Palmetto Bay, Completed November 2012) (Danny Casals 305-969 5091) (dcasals@palmettobay-fl.gov)
- 40- Killian Park Road Stormwater Improvement (\$218,142) (Village of Pinecrest, Completed December 2012) (Daniel Moretti 305-669 6916) (moretti@pinecrest-fl.gov)
- 41- Progress Rd. Roadway and Drainage Improvements (\$105,522) (City of South Miami, Completed January 2013) (Jorge Vera 305-403 2072) (jvera@southmiamifl.gov)
- 42- ARRA Municipalities Group B: City of Miami Gardens Bus Shelters (\$894,000) (Miami Dade Transit, Completed March 2013) (Javier Salmon 786-473 4710) (jsalmon@miamidade.gov)
- 43- I-195/ Julia Tuttle from SR 5/ Biscayne Blvd to SR 907/ Alton Rd Bike Path / Trail (\$121,520) (Florida Department of Transportation, Completed March 2013) (Roland Rodriguez 305-345 0696) (rrodriguez@pinnaclecei.com)
- 44- NW 8th ST & NW 14 CT Roadway and Drainage Improvements (\$425,895) (City of Miami, Completed May 2013) (Robert Fenton 786-263-2133) (rfenton@miamigov.com)
- 45- Friedland Manor Drainage Improvements (\$406,567) (City of Florida City, Completed June 2013) (Sean Compel 786-502-0770) (sean.compel@stantec.com)
- 46- SR 9 (NW 27 Ave), From NW 79 ST to NW 84 ST Roadway Improvements (\$119,000) (Florida Department of Transportation, Completed July 2013) (Roland Rodriguez 305-345 0696) (rrodriguez@pinnaclecei.com)
- 47- Sidewalk Improvements along SR A1A/ Collins Ave @ SR 826/ NW 63 ST. (\$205,521) (Florida Department of Transportation, Completed October 2013) (Roland Rodriguez 305-345 0696) (rrodriguez@pinnaclecei.com)
- 48- **Doral Trolley Route 3 Infrastructure Improvements. (\$114,210)** (City of Doral, Completed November 2013) (Rudy de la Torre 786-236-5912) (rudy.delatorre@cityofdoral.com)
- 49- **Doral Trolley Infrastructure Improvements Citywide. (\$217,349)** (City of Doral, Completed December 2013) (Rudy de la Torre 786-236-5912) (rudy.delatorre@cityofdoral.com)
- 50- Wild Lime Park Parking Expansion and Concrete Walkway. (\$201,442) (Miami Dade Park & Recreation Department, Completed January 2014) (Leroy Garcia 786-210-5937) (garcial@miamidade.gov)
- 51- **Biscayne Island Drainage Improvements (\$735,559)**. (City of Miami, Completed March 2014) (Valentine Onuigbo 786-447-9817) (vonuigbo@miamigov.com)
- 52- Beacom Project Area Improvements-Phase I (\$767,132) (City of Miami, Completed March 2014) (Robert Fenton 786-263-2133) (rfenton@miamigov.com)

- 53- Sunset Drive Downtown Median. (84,663) (City of South Miami, Completed October 2014) (Ricardo Ayala 305-403-2072) (rayala@southmiamifl.gov)
- 54- NW 11 ST from 27 Ave to 37 Ave. Area Roadway Improvements. (\$188,874) (City of Miami, Completed October 2014) (Valentine Onuigbo 786-447-9817) (vonuigbo@miamigov.com)
- 55- Districtwide Minor Asphalt Repair. (\$250,000) (FDOT, District 6, Completed December 2014) (John Garzia 305-640-7177) (john.garzia@dot.state.fl.us)
- 56- Multiple Parks ADA Improvements (\$336,741.68) (Miami Dade Park & Recreation Department, Completed January 2015) (Leopoldo Aybar 786-201-2422) (aybar@miamidade.gov)
- 57- **NW 18 PL Road and Drainage Improvements (\$473,087.20)** (City of Miami, Completed March 2015) (Robert Fenton 786-263-2133) (rfenton@miamigov.com)
- 58- Lummus Park Landing (\$222,612.91) (City of Miami, Completed May 2015) (David Adato 305-416 1899 / 786-376 4391) (dadato@miamigov.com)
- 59- Beacom Project Area Improvements- Phase II (\$818,978.96) (City of Miami, Completed July 2015) (Robert Fenton 786-263-2133) (rfenton@miamigov.com)
- 60- Drainage Improvements 13000 SW 60 Street (\$112,080) (Village of Pinecrest, Completed October 2015) (Mark Spanioli 305-669-6916) (mspanioli@pinecrest-fl.gov)
- 61- Sub-Basin 10 (SW 88 Ave) Paving and Drainage Improvements (\$922,633.25) (Village of Palmetto Bay, Completed November 2015) (Danny Casals 305-969-5091) (dcasals@palmettobay-fl.gov)
- 62- Drainage and Road Improvements Project Multiple Sites #20140165 (\$383,287) (Public Works Miami-Dade County, Completed November 2015) (Pedro Marsan 305-281-9062) (marsan@miamidade.gov)
- 63- Twin Lakes Drainage and Roadway Construction Area 1 & 2 (\$345,975) (City of South Miami, Completed April 2016) (Ricardo Ayala 305-403-2072) (rayala@southmiamifl.gov)
- 64- **Drainage and Road Improvements Project Multiple Sites #20140177 (\$755,761)** (Public Works Miami-Dade County, Completed May 2016) (Alfonso Duarte 305-409-8224) (aduarte@miamidade.gov)



Engineering Contractor - Lic. E-251302 11020 SW 55 ST., Miami, FL 33165 Phone: 786-291-2949 Fax: 786-472-8831

maggolc@yahoo.com

#### **RESUME:**

MARIO GONZALEZ

Superintendent/ Project Manager of Maggolc Inc.

Gonzalez is a Roadway Construction and Civil Engineer with over 24 years of progressive experience in the fields of highway and railway design, construction, maintenance, and operations.

#### **EDUCATION:**

Instituto Superior Politécnico (Higher Polytechnic Institute) "Julio Antonio Mella", Santiago de Cuba, Cuba. Degree: INGENIERO VIAL (Roadway Construction Engineer), July 1988. This is equivalent to a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering (BSCE) from a regionally accredited institution of higher education in the United States.

Universidad Central de Venezuela, Caracas, Venezuela.

Degree: INGENIERO CIVIL (Civil Engineer), July 1997.

#### **CERTIFICATIONS:**

- TROXLER Electronics Lab Nuclear Gauge Safety Training, (2001 & 2004)
- FDOT MUTCD/Maintenance of Traffic, Advance Level (2016)
- ASPHALT PAVING TECHNICIAN Level 1 (2004)
- EARTHWORK CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION Level 1 (2005)
- ACI, Concrete Field Testing Technician- Grade 1. (2005)
- FDOT Concrete Field Inspector Specifications. (2005)

#### LICENSES:

- -General Engineering Contractor
- -General Building Contractor
- -Registered and Certificate State of Florida Undergraund Utilities Contractor.
- -Registered General Contractor State of Florida

#### **WORK EXPERIENCE:**

#### MAGGOLC INC., Miami, Florida, USA. (June 2005 to Present).

Gonzalez is the owner and president of Maggolc Inc., this is an Engineering Contractor Company. Specialized in Drainage Systems, Pavement and Concrete.

#### Work Executed:

- Beacom Project Area Drainage and Road Improvements- Phase II (City of Miami) 2015
- NW 18 PL Draiange and Road Improvements (City of Miami) 2015
- Multiple Parks- ADA Improvements (Miami Dade Park & Rec Dep.) 2015
- Districtwide Minor Asphalt Repair (FDOT) 2014
- NW 11 ST from NW 27 Ave to 37 Ave Area Roadway Improv. (City of Miami) 2014
- Sunset Drive Downtown Median (City of South Miami) 2014
- Dorm Ave Drainage Improvements (City of South Miami) 2014
- Beacom Project Area Improvements- Phase I (City of Miami) 2013
- Wild Lime Park Parking Expansion and Concrete Walkway (Miami Dade Park & Rec Dep.) 2013
- Biscayne Island Drainage Improvements (City of Miami) 2013
- Sidewalk Improvements along SR A1A/ Collins Ave @ SR 826 (FDOT) 2013
- SR 9 (NW 27 Ave) @ NW 79 ST Roadway Improvements (FDOT) 2013
- Friedland Manor Drainage Improvements (City of Florida City) 2013
- NW 8 ST & NW 14 CT Roadway & Drainage Improvements (City of Miami) 2013
- I-195/ Julia Tuttle Bike Path/ Trail (FDOT) 2013
- ARRA Municipalities Group B: City of Miami Gardens Bus Shelters (Miami Dade Transit) 2013

- Progress Rd Roadway & Drainage Improvements (City of South Miami) 2012
- Killian Park Rd Stormwater Improvements (Village of Pinecrest) 2012
- Phase IV Drainage Improvements. (Village of Palmetto Bay) 2012
- SR 94/ Kendall Dr at SW 142 Ave Roadway Improv. (FDOT) 2012
- FDOT LAP Roadway Improvements. (City of Sweetwater) 2012
- SW 64 Street Corridor Improv. (City of South Miami) 2012
- District #2 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements. (City of Miami) 2012
- Long Key State Park Resurface Campground Road (Florida Dep. of Environmental Protection) 2012.
- Suncrest Dr. & Moss Ranch Rd. Stormwater Improvements (Village of Pinecrest) 2011.
- SR 909 (Alton Road) at West 52 Street Drainage Improvements (FDOT District 6) 2011
- SW 19 Terrace Roadway & Drainage Improvements (CIP, City of Miami) 2011.
- Tamiami Canal Miccosukee Linear Park (Miami-Dade County, Park & Recreation Dep.) 2011.
- -District #4 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements (City of Miami) 2011
- -MIA NW 36 Street & 67 Ave Intersection Improvement (concrete ) (Aviation Department M-D County) 2011
- -MIA Building 3050 Parking Lot Improvements (Aviation Department M-D County) 2011
- -District #1 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements (City of Miami) 2011
- -District #3 Citywide ADA Sidewalk Improvements (City of Miami) 2011
- -Intersection Realignment SW 139 Terr. & SW 140 Dr. and Esat Guava ST One Way Street Conversion. (Village of Palmetto Bay) 2010
- -Installation of Sidewalks and Ramps along NE 12 Ave. (City of North Miami) 2010.
- -AD Barnes Park Asphalt Walkways. . (M-D County Park & Recreation) 2010.
- -Golden Shore Park Pavers Sidewalks. (City of Sunny Isles). 2010
- -District I, Sidewalks Repair. (City of Miami). 2010
- -Crandon Park ADA Parking Space Striping and Signs. (M-D County Park & Recreation) 2010.
- -District II, Sidewalks Repair. (City of Miami). 2010
- -Harbor Drive Lighting and Resurfacing Improv. (Village of Key Biscayne) 2010
- -Blue Road Roundabouts and Drainage. (City of Coral Gables) 2010
- -Drainage Retention Improvements of State Rd. 907 (Alton Rd.) at Allison Drive. Milling and Asphalt Resurfacing. (FDOT, District 6) 2009
- -Country Club of Miami Park Concrete and Asphalt Walkway (Miami-Dade County, Park & Recreation Dep.) 2009.
- -Brendwood Park Asphalt Walkway. (City of Miami Gardens) 2009.
- -West Little River Improve Asphalt Driveways. (Miami-Dade County Office of Community and Economic Development) 2008.
- -West Perrine Park Concrete Slabs and Poured Safety Surface. (M-D C Park and Recreation) 2008
- Asphalt Pavement Repair. Florida Department of Transportation (District 6). 2008-2009, 2009-2010 and 2010-2011.
- -Improve Intersections Countywide Project, include Milling and Asphalt Resurfacing. (Sidewalk, Handicap Ramps, Curb & Gutters, Pavers, New Pavement, Drainage, Sodding (M-D County Public Work Dep.) 2008
- -Seal Coat and Restriping of Station 13 and Logistics Parking Area. (MD County Fire Rescue Department) 2008
- -Dolphin Archaeological Site Sidewalk Construction. (M-D County Park and Recreation) 2008.
- -Olympic Park Sidewalks Construction. (M-D County Park and Recreation) 2007
- -Norman & Jean Reach Park Foul Ball Netting. (M-D County Park and Recreation) 2007
- -Drainage Improvement Project for NW 22 Court from NW 107 ST to NW 112 ST. (M-D County Public Work Dep.). 2006, etc

#### Others Places where Gonzalez was working:

SRS ENGINEERING, INC., Miami, Florida, USA. (August 2006 to July 2007).

Construction Field Inspector of Drainage and Roadway Restoration. (Public Work Department, Miami-Dade County Projects).

- -Allaphatta Phase I.
- -Hardwood Village Phase II.

#### BERMELLO, AJAMIL & PARTNERS, INC., Miami, Florida, USA. (May 2005 to July 2006).

Quality Control (QC) Construction Inspector (DOT Projects): (Earthwork, Concrete and Asphalt).

- -Okeechobee Road. (W 12 Ave to Palmetto Expwy)
- -Miami Garden Drive. (NW 2 Ave to NW 17 Ave.)
- -Biscayne Blvd. (NW 96 ST to NW 104 ST)

- -Golden Gate Pkwy (Naples)
- -Florida's Turnpike (Griffin Rd to Sunrise Blvd).
- -A-1-A (Key West).

## MARLIN ENGINEERING INC., Miami, Florida, USA. (October 2000 –May 2005). February 2004 to May 2005.

Construction Field Inspector of Drainage and Roadway (FEMA-DERM, Miami-Dade County Projects). Activities Included:

Verify of storm drainage structures in accordance with the approved shop drawings, installation of drainage and pollution control structures, drainage pipe inverts, joints, seals, French Drain Systems, solid pipe placement and bedding material. Check the Contractor's compliance with all Maintenance of Traffic.

Reconstruction of Pavement, Roadway Milling and Resurfacing; reconstruction of Curb and Gutter and Sidewalks; Site Restoration, including Grading of Swales, Sod Placement, etc.

#### Requirements:

- Ensure the quality of the construction work, as per the Public Works Department Manual, FDOT Standards, and Project Contract Documents.
- Ensure the full restoration of the project, including site cleanliness, swale grading, and sod placement.
- Keep records of daily activities, daily production, site testing, and progress of the work.
- Resolve complaints by residents resulting from construction activities.

#### March 2001 to February 2004: Project Engineer

Project Engineer for the design, roadway restoration, and storm drainage systems improvement, including independent sites and community. (DERM/FEMA Program administered by the Division of Recovery and Mitigation-DORM) in Miami-Dade County and City of Miami Storm Drainage Improvement Program). Working closely with Microstation and AutoCAD software.

October 2000 to March 2001 and October 2002 to February 2003: Roadway Inspector.

Surveying, inspecting and drawing sketches for roadway restoration projects in Q.N.I.P, Public Work Department of Miami-Dade County. Inspecting and supervising construction of asphalt patching, milling and resurfacing operations.